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Dear Shareholder,

It is my pleasure to be able to provide to you the Annual Report for the fi nancial year ended 
30 June 2009 on behalf  of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL. Within this report the Company’s 
exploration activities and fi nancial performance are presented for the period.

The Company has placed most of  its effort in the period on exploration within its project 
areas at Fifi eld NSW. The exploration progress has been steady with the current establishment 
of  the Pit One bulk sampling area. The decision to focus this way was based on the October 
2008 trenching program, where the Company had made a signifi cant geological discovery, 
determining the likely geological control of  the coarse Platinum mineralising system at 
Fifi eld. This represents a key milestone in exploration for the determination of  a potential 
commercial Platinum resource(s).

Distinct and strong “metal zoning” are a feature of  the different mineralised styles now 
known to be present at Fifi eld.  Whilst still at an early stage of  assessment, these observations 
appear to be representative of  genuine mineralised systems that have not been recognised 
previously by other explorers of  the modern era. These systems are adjacent to, or co-exist 
with, the Platinum mineralisation. 

It has been a credit to the excellent fi eld exploration and operational activities conducted by Colin Plumridge, Exploration 
Manager, and his team, that the geological interpretation of  the Fifi eld area has been positively and permanently altered due 
to the recognition of  the “rift valley” setting and associated mineralisation potential. As a consequence the Company has now 
established more than seven project areas and prospects of  importance and constructed a new geological map for the 
district.

The major mineralisation focus for exploration by the Company at Fifi eld is still coarse grain platinum.  The vision 
for the platinum projects at Fifi eld is to develop resource areas within the bedrock that have “open cut mining characteristics”, 
for the primary coarse grain platinum.  Given the large scale of  the platinum mineralisation at Fifi eld, which encompasses 
the “Ebenezer” and “Platina-Gillenbine” platinum in soil anomalies at more than 6km2, the near surface occurrence, gravity 
separable nature and metallurgy, such a mining operation, if  established, would likely have extremely low capital costs. This 
means the commercial target being sought is a prize worth pursuing, and would be considered world class in potential, if  
realised.

The Pit One area on the Company freehold is already providing important information and will be undergoing more focussed 
attention in the next period, in the belief  that it may provide a key direction on the recognised shear zones, hosting platinum at 
Fifi eld.

It was noted in the work program at Pit One that the potential exists for a possible cash fl ow contribution in the next period, 
derived from removing and processing the platinum- and gold-bearing gravels that overlay the target bedrock associated with the 
Company’s exploration efforts.  Accordingly, the Company has commenced some trial mining and will attempt to quantify the 
commercial potential of  the gravel, believed to have a possible strike length of  2km and a width of  500m.

The Company’s sample processing facility at Fifi eld continues to grow in capacity and expertise, providing low cost internal 
sample assessment which is able to support the trial mining, bulk sampling and routine exploration programs. This forms an 
integral part of  the exploration approach used by the Company.

In the 2008-9 reporting period, platinum prices traded substantially lower, towards USD$800/oz at the end of  2008.  However, 
during 2009 the price of  platinum has seen an upward trend to reach a value of  USD$1,250/oz, therefore making a signifi cant 
recovery.

Minimal work was conducted at the diamond areas at Bingara NSW in the last period, due to the pursuit of  the Platinum 
project areas which have been set as the near-term priority by the Company. The exploration at Bingara will focus on the 
establishment of  more pipes, with a particular emphasis on the Trevallyn area in the short term, thus building upon the 
Horton Valley No.1 and No.2 pipes previously discovered.  The Company is of  the opinion that a cluster of  “volcanic pipes 
is likely to be discovered in the Bingara area”.  

The Company has continued to maintain a high standard of  community interaction during the period, particularly within the 
Fifi eld area.  



Chairman’s Report

Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL - 2009 Annual Report to Shareholders
Page 3

 Company Financial Performance to June 30th 2009

The global economic conditions deteriorated signifi cantly during the period, and the Directors have been mindful of  this in developing 
suitable strategies for the Company, going forward.

The Company maintained a cost effective result in its fi nancial performance during the period.  For the year ended 30th June 2009 the 
company incurred a loss of  $286,296 from ordinary activities compared with a loss of  $454,416 for the prior year. The closing cash 
position for 30th June 2009 was $1,351,467. 

Important advances have been made by the Company during the period and this is due to the performance, dedication and contribution 
from an increasing range of  people working with the Company.   In this regard, I would like to sincerely express my appreciation for 
the efforts of  my fellow Directors, Exploration Manager, staff, associates and consultants for the hard work, creative ideas, positive 
attitude and support in the period.

The next period is likely to provide continued volatility in the fi nancial markets due to the changed global circumstances.  The 
Company will pursue its exploration activities in a responsible manner, recognising the need to add value to its project areas and 
realise its broader vision of  successfully delivering a positive project outcome at Fifi eld. The aim of  producing a potential cash fl ow 
dimension to its exploration areas is also a priority for the Company in the coming year.

The Board of  Directors would like to express their gratitude to all shareholders for their ongoing support and interest in the 
Company. I look forward to providing important updates throughout the next period.

Yours sincerely,

 

John Kaminsky
Chairman
Dated 6th September 2009
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Review of Exploration Activities

EXPLORATION OVERVIEW

Exploration within the Fifi eld Platinum Project areas was the key emphasis in the period, building upon work in the previous 
years.  The geology and mineralising systems at Fifi eld continued to offer new and diverse project opportunities in platinum 
(Pt), gold (Au) and base metals. The Company now has more than seven project areas of  signifi cance at Fifi eld.

The primary direction undertaken within the period was to advance the Platina-Gillenbine Pt project areas, with a major focus 
involving the bulk sample disturbance area known as Pit One. To this extent, auger drilling and trenching programs were 
undertaken extensively at various locations to help delineate high priority target areas within Pit One which contained coarse 
grain Pt within the bedrock and gravel layers.  These programs enabled the structural and geological control for the platinum 
mineralisation to be examined in a preliminary manner successfully.  

The Company believes that the potential exists to determine a resource, not established to date, within its platinum exploration 
work areas.  An 8km long mineralised corridor is believed to exist within EL5534 and will continue to be explored in the next 
period, but the prime area of  interest for Pt will remain in the Platina-Gillenbine area. The geological model adopted by the 
company shows emerging evidence of  a geological control for the Pt mineralisation in shear zones and breccias.  

Project and Mineralisation Background – Fifi eld NSW

Rimfi re has developed a wide variety of  mineralisation prospects within the immediate Fifi eld region, including Au, Pt and 
Cu/base metal prospects, occurring over a compact zone of  less than 10km. This observation also provides further support to 
the interpretation of  the region as being a complex volcanic rift setting, with evidence for multiple, polymetallic mineralisation 
events associated with sub-volcanic intrusives, shearing and brecciation at various scales. 

Accordingly, the exploration shows that metal zoning remains an important feature of  the regional geology at Fifi eld. 
The relatively under explored Fifi eld area represents an excellent exploration setting for commercial mineralisation 
discovery in the Company’s view.  

In the context of the Lachlan – Cadia Lineament, the Fifield area has prominent mineralisation that is underexplored
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Review of Exploration Activities

Coarse grain platinum in the bedrock represents the major mineralisation target for exploration by the Company at 
Fifi eld. The Platina-Gillenbine area is of  particular importance in understanding this Pt bedrock mineralisation.

Historic Pt mining at Fifi eld yielded in excess of  a reported 20,000 oz of  Pt from the deep 
leads and surface soil mining (circa. 1900-1930). The soil mining activity has disturbed the 
most exposed areas of  the land surface, thus requiring a customised soil sampling technique 
in many instances. The large scale of  the Pt mineralisation at Fifi eld has meant that the 
Company has needed considerable near surface sample processing to defi ne representative 
areas of  bedrock Pt.

Activities conducted as part of  the exploration program included the use of  techniques 
such as bulk sampling, auger drilling, trenching, large scale soil sampling, sample processing, 
ground based geophysics, geochemistry and detailed geological mapping.

An important phase of  ongoing exploration for the Company involves the Pt mineralisation 
on the Company freehold, including the current sampling area known as Pit One.

The Company’s processing and exploration capacity was improved further at Fifi eld with the 
addition of  extra plant, which continued to produce concentrates from bulk sampling, soil 

sampling, drill programs and trenching.  This facility assists both the Pt and diamond projects and made a valuable contribution 
to the exploration program in the period and is a major distinguishing feature of  the Company and its exploration approach.  The 
facility also allows great adaptability to the individual project needs.

Exploration Strategy and Direction

Strategically, the Company recognises it must balance the needs of  exploration carefully within a more volatile global economic 
climate and is therefore endeavouring to focus its efforts on the most promising project initiatives now established at Fifi eld.  
Given that the highly mineralised region at Fifi eld NSW is signifi cantly under-explored in historic terms, it is important to set 
clear priorities that remain suffi ciently fl exible to accommodate the exploration results as they unfold.  This is a key element to 
the ongoing direction and assessment by the Company.

Exploration priorities have been established consistent with the following principles:

Maintain a high quality output of  exploration, within a low cost structure.  • 

The dominant exploration focus for the Company will remain the pursuit of  primary coarse grain Pt within the • 
bedrock, at Fifi eld NSW, in the Platina-Gillenbine and Ebenezer areas. 

The tangible nature of  the Pt mineralisation, in particular existing in the surface and near surface positions at • 
Fifi eld, will be assessed for its commercial return possibilities, with bulk testing, and where appropriate, larger scale 
trial mining. 

Bulk sampling for Pt is occurring on the Company freehold as a fi rst priority• 
A range of  Pt bearing layers will be assessed including; soils, subsoil clays, gravels, deep leads and bedrock• 
The objective is to defi ne areas of  commercial importance that can contribute a cash positive return towards the • 
ongoing exploration programs, in harmony with the overall bedrock exploration strategy.

Other project priorities will proceed in order of  merit as exploration results continue to accumulate,•  but will 
be focused primarily at Fifi eld on the prospects “Sorpresa” (Au, base metal in Gossanous Breccia), “Goldengreen” (Au 
dispersed in sediments, “so called Carlin Style”) and “Eclipse-Eclipse North” (Au and VMS style base metal).

Diamonds will have modest exploration expenditure in the short term.  • 

The Company is aiming in the immediate future to secure a contribution to cash fl ow with a strategy of  “exploration 
through trial mining and sampling” in its Pt mineralised areas.

Accordingly, exploration at the Bingara Diamond Project areas was minimal for the period.  The focus was on exploring the 
Trevallyn prospect and commencing further extensive stream and in situ soil sampling at Trevallyn.

Pit One Excavation
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The two discoveries made in the prior period, namely “Horton Valley No.1 Pipe” and “Horton Valley No.2 Pipe” await 
sampling for their diamond contained potential. Both pipes represent geological structures with important diamond 
indicator mineral chemistry.  The Company has signifi cantly advanced its geological model and believes other pipe 
discoveries are still likely in the region and a suitable exploration formula is now established at Bingara.

The AGM was held on 20th November 2008 in Melbourne, where a detailed presentation on the Company and its 
exploration progress and priorities was provided and can be accessed with audio on the Company website.  

FIFIELD PLATINUM PROJECT AREA EXPLORATION

The Fifi eld Platinum Project is comprised of fi ve tenements and two mineral claims covering known alluvial and hard 
rock platinum mineralisation at Fifi eld in central western NSW. The Company is conducting exploration on the source(s) 
of the coarse grained platinum historically mined in the Fifi eld area and the newly recognised gold and base metal 
potential now seen. The following areas for exploration or development are held:

Exploration Licences  - EL5534   EL5565   EL6144   EL6241   EL7058   EL7233   EL7234

Mineral Claims       - MC 305   MC 306

The Company’s objective remains to continue with its exploration work programs and processing of samples with a view 
to establishing the concept of the potential for a minable open cut mineralised corridor of the coarse grain Pt 
occurring within the bedrock at Fifi eld. A large corridor of mineralisation rather than a single lode is more likely to exist 
in the Company’s opinion.  

The Company consolidated a range of important insights within the Fifi eld region in the last period as summarised in the 
following table, highlighting the new interpretation of the mineralisation.

SUMMARY TABLE OF RIMFIRE EXPLORATION INSIGHTS AT FIFIELD NSW

Issue of Difference in the modern era of Exploration Prior to Rimfi re 
(work of other explorers) Rimfi re advances

Drainage Direction Interpreted North to South South to North

Rift Valley Setting Not seen Recognised

Pt recognised and recovered from Bedrock No Yes

Sampling size and system Inadequate Customised Plant

Focus on Magnetic Features Excessive Field Based

Geological Control Discovered No Yes

Gold and Base Metal Exploration & Recognition Not Signifi cant Yes

Geological model “Shear Zones” No Yes

Review of Exploration Activities
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The Company believes a very large primary Pt bearing province exists at Fifi eld and this is being demonstrated in the 
current regional exploration work around the Platina-Gillenbine area.  It appears that the discovered Ebenezer anomaly has not 
been previously identifi ed by other explorers at Fifi eld.

Approval was received from the regulatory authority enabling the Company to commence “trial bulk sampling” operations at Pit 
One on the Company’s freehold within the Ebenezer and Platina-Gillenbine Pt anomaly.  A number of  trenches were placed to 
assist positioning the larger open pit areas that were mined in the period.

TRENCHING PROGRAM “PIT ONE” – DISCOVERY OF PLATINUM MINERALISED VEINS

Trenching was conducted within Pit One, examining Pt in shear zones.  The complex nature of  the geology was examined and 
coarse grain Pt was recovered from the bedrock position in a number of  places.
  
Pit One is considered an important area, linking the shear zone system, at Platina-Gillenbine to the gradation of  the near surface 
bedrock position to the alluvium covered valley containing the Platina Deep Lead system.

The “Eastern Shear Zone” Pt surface anomaly was mapped in the prior period as a continuous feature over a strike 
length of  1,000m. It extends into the Company owned freehold land area. The Pt contours within the residual soil are parallel 
in orientation with the subsoil Pt anomaly at Platina-Gillenbine, now named the “Central Shear Zone” (which was defi ned in 
2006).

The Pit One sampling area appears geologically infl uenced by the Eastern Shear Zone. Accordingly, the Pit One area is being 
extensively tested with auger drilling, trenching and bulk sampling for the signifi cance and orientation of  the Pt mineralisation 
in the bedrock at this location.

 Auger drilling and soil 
sampling Trenching programs Bulk Sampling   Rock Chipping & 

soil sampling

Review of Exploration Activities
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The Geological Context and Importance of  Pit One Area and Bulk Testing Phase

The trenching program conducted on the Company freehold in October 2008 resulted in the Company making a 
signifi cant discovery and reaching a critical new milestone concerning the geological control of  the Pt mineralising 
system at Fifi eld.  

The intersection of  complex, clearly identifi able vein structures, containing Pt, Au and a key pathfi nder element Chromite (Cr) 
occurred in trenches 20, 24, 24a, Tr26 and Tr26a. The Company believes that this could be representative of  the entire mineralised 
Pt system observed at Fifi eld within the Platina-Gillenbine and Ebenezer project areas (approx. 6km2) and is a key milestone with 
respect to Pt exploration at Fifi eld. 

This trenching within the Pit One Pt bulk sampling locality demonstrated that coarse Pt is present within mineralised veins in the 
underlying bedrock.  

The vein structures identifi ed appear to be a geological and structural control on the Pt mineralisation.• 

Veins are relatively soft compared with surrounding rock and vary in width from 1cm to 30cm• 
The structures are most likely related to the shear zone systems, which are believed to extend to depth• 

The vein structures seen in the Pit One vicinity still require detailed assessment to determine “where the best areas” of  Pt reside.  
(It is believed that the Pt is likely to reside in high grade clusters, within veins of  this type).  The Pit One bulk sampling program 
is a major work area to help achieve this outcome.

It is contended that should suffi cient Pt grade and tonnage be determined at Fifi eld and a suitable resource established then a 
prospective mining operation would now have a means of  more clearly delineating the best Pt positions, namely, those structural 
locations associated with the Chromite.  

Given the successful discovery of  the Pt vein structure within Rimfi re’s own freehold boundary, a wider district sampling program 
using this type of  large scale exposure would be used at an appropriate time on other prospective sites within the Ebenezer Pt 
anomaly.

Review of Exploration Activities



Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL - 2009 Annual Report to Shareholders
Page 9

BULK SAMPLING PROGRAM AT “PIT ONE”

In March 2009, the Company commenced trial mining of  a new Pt bearing gravel 
system that was encountered during the trenching and auger drilling programs already 
conducted on Pit One.  

The overburden was removed (1-2m), the gravel (0.7m) trial mined and the bedrock 
will be cleaned off  over the entire area, mapped and sampled.  The bedrock will then 
be tested with layered exposures created in “plan view” to highlight the Pt bearing 
mineralised veins, adjacent to and beneath the gravel system.    

Summary of  the key objectives of  this bulk sampling program are:

Mapping and sampling large sections of  the veined bedrock to yield Pt and Au bedrock grades.• 

To generate, if  possible, a positive cash return for the Company by recovering Pt and Au from the overlying gravel above • 
the bedrock.

The gravity separation plant used to recover coarse Pt and Au at Fifi eld was upgraded substantially to meet compliance standards, 
improve recoveries of  concentrate and increase overall throughput.

In the early stages of  evaluation of  the Pit One area, trial mining showed that the upper 
gravel is part of  the broad sheet Ice Age period high run-off  gravel.  A probable wide 
channel with a braided pattern characterises this gravel, and much of  the gravel appears 
undisturbed. Below this gravel there are complex remnants of  former older land surfaces, 
including the previously encountered high clay “debris fl ow layer” which also contains Pt. 

In Tr24, at the west end, a lower gravel system (0.5m deeper than the Ice Age gravel system) 
was encountered.  It is distinct from the other gravel, a likely narrow system of  steeper 
gradient that contains “low to no travel” Pt grains, by comparison. Pt appears concentrated 
on the bedrock contact.

The key expectation of  the Pit One program includes a thorough assessment of  the 
recovered Pt, Au and other heavy minerals with an exposure of  the underlying bedrock 
geology also. Apart from a preliminary review of  the bedrock geology, bedrock mining and 
testing has yet to be undertaken, but will occur once the gravel layer processing has been 
completed. The results to date are broadly positive in the Company’s opinion, with Pt/Au 
recovery being evident from gravels processed to date.

Trial Mining and Processing Program at Pit One in the Period

Reasonable progress has been made in the second half  of  the period with regards to the trial mining of  the gravel in Pit One. 
The plant and mining operation have not been designed at this point in time to be a continuous commercial program, but is able 
to process large scale samples (more than 100t per day) as required, on an intermittent basis.

Two mining blocks were excavated (blocks/panels A and C).  The Pt bearing gravel layer was removed (2,500t) and partially 
processed through the gravity plant, resulting in approximately 1,500kgs of  Ironstone concentrate, containing Pt and Au as 
coarse grains.

A concentrate processing facility and operation was established. The Ironstone concentrate has undergone metallurgical testing 
for Pt and Au recovery.  In addition, crushing and grinding tests on the Ironstone also revealed that a portion of  Pt and Au 
grains are encapsulated within certain Ironstone pebbles. A large proportion of  the Ironstone is magnetically susceptible, and this 
therefore provides a metallurgical pathway.  Accordingly, a small magnetic separation circuit was established.

Review of Exploration Activities
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The gravity plant and circuit continue to be modifi ed for improved effi ciency.  • The ramp loading area was increased 
in size, to accommodate the larger (40t) hopper installation and major maintenance overhaul was undertaken, including 
upgraded motors, pumps and generators.

The larger area of  available gravels on the Company freehold has been prioritised for examination on a broad • 
scale.  Auger drilling will be used to delineate the full extent of  the gravel system on the Company freehold on a strike of  
over 2km and an average width of 450m.

Petrological examination occurred on 
a range of materials recovered from the 
plant including rock, mineral and metal 
grain samples, including important 
composite materials. This should assist 
further understanding of the genesis 
and character of the Pt and Au being 
recovered.

Field observation and petrological review, 
under microscope, of the morphology of 
the coarse metal grains, indicates many 
Au and Pt grains appear to have a local 
provenance.  Grains with longer travel 
histories are also present.

Near Term Objectives for the Bulk Sampling Program at Pit One

The Company is targeting a range of qualitative and quantitative outcomes within the next period at Pit One area, as follows:

Continue to improve mining and processing methods•  to minimise overburden dilution of the gravel processed 
and increase effi ciency in handling and throughput.  Water needs are also being assessed.

Determine an approximate head grade for the Pt & Au • within this 
particular section of the gravel system, but recognising that gravel systems 
in general are likely to contain irregular grade.

Map the bedrock geology in large “plan view” exposures. • Having 
established a clear divide with the alluvial Pt and Au system in the gravel 
infl uenced layer above, examine the underlying bedrock, for “in situ bedrock 
Pt, Au and indicator minerals”. Excavate vertical sections of bedrock for 
detailed sampling.

Delineate larger sections of the Pt & Au bearing gravels and bedrock • 
systems.

Review of Exploration Activities
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Open new mining blocks B, D and E to continue the bulk sampling• 
Use extensive auger drill traverses and additional trenches• 
Examine additional known gravels on the Company freehold, including historic tailings from the Platina Lead• 

The Company provided the following links for video of the work site area and discussion of the bulk sampling program 
on Pit One. 

Video 1  Pit One Excavation of Pt gravel system in Panel C Fifi eld NSW - July 2009 (click title)
Video 2  Panel A discussion on Pt gravel and bedrock Pit One Fifi eld NSW – July 2009 (click title)
Video 3  Processing Plant operation and Pt concentrate production Fifi eld NSW – July 2009 (click title)

Gravel Delineation Plan and Sampling on the Company Freehold

The Company intends to undertake an extensive six week auger drilling campaign on its freehold in the next period, 
identifying the Pt and Au bearing gravel system, suitable for bulk sampling.  Key features of the program are as follows:

An area of approximately 2km x 450m is believed to potentially hold Pt bearing gravel worthy of assessment• 
85 auger holes are planned, to depths of 3m - 4m• 
Pt and Au will be recovered by the Company at its own facility• 

Review of Exploration Activities
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If  results appear worthwhile, then bulk trenches would be undertaken (100m sections) to help provide input for a possible 
resource estimation of  Pt and Au bearing gravels.  This program would also provide valuable additional bedrock information to 
the Company.

SUMMARY OF EXPLORATION IN OTHER AREAS AT FIFIELD

Exploration was also conducted at other locations within the Fifi eld district in the period.

Additional rock chipping, mapping and soil sampling programs north of  the • “North Eclipse” area were completed.  
Previous rock chip assays and mapping have identifi ed a signifi cant Au and base metal anomaly at Eclipse North. A detailed 
soil geochemical survey grid was performed indicating signifi cant Pb and Cu anomalism over an area 1,000m x 200m. 

“Goldengreen”•  was further examined with trenching and auger drilling exploring for the newly observed “dispersed 
       Au in sediments” already seen in this area, in previous auger drilling.

A major soil geochemistry and auger drilling (60 holes) grid was completed over the•  “Sorpresa” area.  Independent 
       assay laboratory for Au, Pb, Cu, and Zn re-confi rms the prospective nature of  a discrete geochemical anomaly already 
       identifi ed, possibly representative of  a “breccia mineralised pipe-like body”, of  the order 120m x 25m.  

The Company also examined EL7233, within the Fifi eld district, with surface mapping and a ground based • 
      geophysical survey.

A review of  historic work at the • “KARS” Pt area was completed – coarse grain Pt was recovered. The new work indicates 
the presence of  coarse grain material at KARS in these drill cuttings, alongside “fi ne grain assayable Pt”.

“Eclipse North” Prospect – Possible VMS style target developed from Cu and Pb Geochemistry

An additional rock chip sampling program was undertaken at 
Eclipse North, and other prospects in the vicinity in search of  
further base metal and Au anomalism. Three new prospects have 
been surface sampled, based on the gossanous breccia fl oat and 

are now named, “Transit (1)”, “Peck’s (2)” and “Venus 
(3)”, all located north of  Eclipse North.

The Company also used the fi eld based XRF to map 
base metals more extensively in this area, and also 
further to the north.  

An auger drilling program is the next stage of  
exploration, designed to test the bedrock geochemistry 
for Au and base metal.

The Pb anomalism encountered is considered 
important, even though relatively low values are seen 

in the Eclipse North soil geochemistry. Based on the experience at 
Sorpresa, the underlying mineralisation potential is well worth pursuing 
at Eclipse North, given a similar soil geochemistry was obtained at 
Sorpresa.

The area at Eclipse North also has a signifi cant, albeit subtle, gold 
soil anomaly. The rock chip sampling combined with mapping results 
show the presence of  a signifi cant surface gossan zone. This suggests 
this area would be relatively simple to evaluate and will be done at a 
later stage.

Eclipse North represents a good prospect, given the positive surface 
indications, ease of  exploration, partly mappable geology, reasonable 
exposed gossan width (20-30m), evidence for signifi cant sulphide 
veins and the presence of  signifi cant quartz veining.

Review of Exploration Activities
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“Goldengreen” Prospect – Possible fi ne Au dispersed in Sediments – “Carlin Style Model”

The Goldengreen South area was explored in 2008 using soil geochemistry, shallow bedrock geochemistry, via auger drilling, 
geological mapping and ground magnetics.  The mineralisation is partly exposed and has been mined on a very small scale about 
70 years ago.  

The NSW Department of  Primary Industries (Minfo issue 86 and Quarterly notes Number 127) has drawn attention to rift 
margin mineralisation west of  Cobar plus Carlin style gold potential in the Cobar Basin.  The disseminated gold in sediments in 
the Goldengreen area is along a rift margin at Fifi eld and has strong similarities to the Cobar Basin, in the Company’s opinion. 

Whilst the work is at an early stage, it should nevertheless be recognised that the Company has confi rmed previously at Fifi eld that 
“Au is disseminated in sediments” and no adequate explanation currently exists.  Rimfi re is well placed to explore for disseminated 
gold in sediments as it has excellent processing facilities for testing coarse gold in soil and auger drilling rigs designed for rapid 
short hole bedrock geochemistry.

The Company also undertook trenching at the “Au in sediments” anomaly previously encountered in auger drilling at Goldengreen 
prospect.  The geological structure revealed in the trenching, Tr27, shows a cluster of  shear-faults with strike direction 30 deg 
(AMG). This direction agrees with the Au soil anomaly, but is at variance to the assumed old working strike direction.  However, 
most importantly, the strike direction 30 deg (AMG) is exactly the same as the Platina-Gillenbine Eastern and Central Shear Zones 
strike direction.  This could indicate a structural connection between Goldengreen and the Platina-Gillenbine areas.  

A regional plot of  this shear-fault direction shows it to be highly disruptive to the Murga and Tout Intrusives to the north, 
indicating this is a large feature that needs to be prospected for disseminated Au.

When time and priorities permit, a program of  gridded auger drilling is required and would involve a low cost program of  
approximately 400 holes for routine external laboratory assay. 

“Sorpresa” Prospect – Possible Mineralised Breccia Pipe target developed from Pb Geochemistry

The gold, silver, lead and zinc mineralisation at Sorpresa is diffi cult to characterise or assign to a particular geological model, 
however results to date are encouraging.  

During the period, soil geochemistry using fi eld XRF was performed on a grid with 50 m line spacings, assaying for Pb and Zn.  
The results indicated a discrete geochemical anomaly, possibly representative of a “breccia mineralised pipe-like body”, of the 
order 120m x 25m.  The Company sees some conceptual target similarities to the “Cobar NSW mineralised lens shapes” in plan 
view.  There is a deep subtle magnetic anomaly co-incident with this newly defi ned soil geochemical anomaly.

Review of Exploration Activities
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The presence of  near surface Au and base metal mineralisation determined in auger drilling and a small RC drill program, 
combined with a positive cyanide leach test confi rming the “extractable nature” of  the Au mineralisation demonstrates that 
Sorpresa represents a suitable commercial target. This is particularly the case, when the broader context of  the historic Au and 
Pb known mineralisation 700m to the NE are considered. 

The Company is proceeding on the basis that multiple mineralised lenses could be present in the zone above the subtle magnetic 
body, and this would be subsequently drill tested, if  appropriate, at a later stage.

The trend of  the mineralisation as defi ned from the recent auger drilling appears to be north-east, in agreement with historic 
observations and the previously mapped surface gossanous fl oat. 

There appears to be depletion (but not dispersion) of  Au within the upper bedrock zone. Bedrock auger values in the mineralised 
zone (max 1g/t) are considerably weaker than shallow RC drilling results in the mineralised zone (max 5g/t).  The gold appears 
to be fi ne and readily extracted by cyanide leach which offers a distinct metallurgical advantage.

The signifi cant depth of  the historic 1950’s shaft (25m) at Sorpresa strongly suggests a sub-vertical orientation to the lode; 
however, dip will still take time to sort out.

The Company believes that this style of  mineralisation is not likely to occur in isolation, so additional targets of  similar type could 
be in the vicinity. 

“KARS” Prospect Fifi eld NSW – EL5565

The Company recovered through its gravity process, what appears to be coarse Pt grains from old RC drill cuttings.   No previous 
examination for coarse Pt grains has occurred in drill cuttings at KARS, so this is a new insight.  Additionally, most Pt grains were 
fairly typical of  those already seen by the Company at KARS (i.e. dirty, irregular, primary grains, different to those at Platina-
Gillenbine); however, a two metre interval had numerous tiny wire like grains.  

The morphology of  these wire grains was very distinctive, which is suggestive of  a separate mineralised horizon.  Confi rmation 
is still required that these wire like grains are also Pt, but fi eld review does suggest that the grains are genuine. In addition, there 
is also the possibility that coarse crystalline Pt grains are present.  Further work is considered necessary to be conclusive.

The Company believes it is likely that the historic Pt assays on drill cuttings at KARS understate the contained Pt, due to the 
presence of  coarse grain Pt, not being captured in the earlier assays (so called nugget effect).
 
BINGARA DIAMONDS PROJECT EXPLORATION AREAS – BINGARA NSW

The Bingara Diamond Project comprises fi ve tenements at Bingara in central north western NSW. The company is conducting 
exploration for the hard rock source(s) of  the alluvial diamonds historically mined in the Bingara-Copeton district and holds the 
following areas for exploration:

Exploration Licences - EL6106  EL5880  EL6892  EL6893  EL6894  

The Company has an exploration target to discover 
the hard rock source(s) of  500,000 carats of  diamonds 
historically mined during the past 100 years in the 
Bingara-Copeton area, north-eastern NSW. A key 
exploration tool has now been developed to fi nd 
this hard rock diamond source(s) that the Company 
believes to exist at Bingara and elsewhere in NSW. 

The results to date represent signifi cant advances 
in the Company’s exploration within the Horton 
Valley for diamond.  The Company discovered two 
“Pipes” during 2007, where key indicator mineral 
has now been observed in fresh rock, below surface, 
and structurally controlled to “explosive vents”.  The 
Company is seeking to make further pipe discoveries 
in the district.

Review of Exploration Activities
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An appropriate bulk sampling program would be planned subsequently, subject to permitting, to investigate for contained 
diamond in the pipes.  

The Company commenced an additional soil sampling program within the Trevallyn prospect at Bingara. This work involved 
surface and near surface sampling in the soils above the drainage of  previously recovered indicator minerals and the 0.271 carat 
Trevallyn diamond (circa. 2002).  

Previously, similar soil sampling programs were successful in helping to isolate key diamond indicator mineral sources leading to 
the discovery of  “Horton Valley No.1” and “Horton Valley No.2” “pipe structures” within the Diamond Project area at Bingara 
NSW.  

Summary of  exploration in the period included:

Soil line sampling, designed to test “in situ” key indicator heavy minerals• 
Geophysics review of  airborne and ground data; detailed mapping and structural review• 
Defi nition of  a wide garnet anomaly (>500m N-S).• 

The sampling program was able to locate substantial garnet indicator mineral anomalism in the steep topography to the east of  
the main drainage system at Trevallyn.  A selection of  garnets from the most relevant sample sites will be more closely examined 
with microprobe.  The garnet anomalism seems to extend to the top of  the easterly ridge in many instances, suggesting the 
garnets are largely “in situ”, close to their source.

The MARID rock fi rst discovered in 2007 was further located in the mapping program, and appears to be aligned with a magnetic 
feature identifi ed at Trevallyn.

Specifi c locations were further tested for garnet with shallow (30cm) subsurface sampling and revealed the garnet anomaly was 
maintained.  Depending on the results of  the existing garnet chemistry at Trevallyn, an auger drill campaign to locate another 
potential pipe would follow at a later date.

Such a discovery would then demonstrate that a key “diamond indicator mineral” source is located in a vent geology, within a 
drainage, above the recovery site of  the “Trevallyn stream sediment diamond” found a number of  years earlier.  This would 
represent further important progress at Bingara.

The information in the report to which this statement is attached that relates to Exploration Results is compiled by Mr Colin Plumridge, who 
is a Member of  The Australian Institute of  Mining and Metallurgy, with over 30 years experience in the mineral exploration and mining 
industry. Mr Plumridge is employed by Plumridge & Associates Pty. Ltd.  Mr Plumridge has suffi cient experience, which is relevant to the 
style of  mineralisation and type of  deposit under consideration and to the activity, which he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person 
as defi ned in the 2004 edition of  the “Australian Code for Reporting of  Mineral Resources and Ore reserves”. Mr Plumridge consents to the 
inclusion in the report of  the matters based on his information in the form and context in which it appears.

Review of Exploration Activities
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Directors’ Report

Your Directors present their report on the company and its controlled entity for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2009.

Directors

The names of  Directors in offi ce at any time during or since the end of  the fi nancial year are:

Graham Billinghurst 
John Kaminsky 
Ramona Enconniere  
Andrew Knox  

 
The Directors have been in offi ce since the start of  the fi nancial year to the date of  this report unless otherwise stated.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of  the consolidated entity during the fi nancial year were the exploration and development of  economic 
mineral deposits.

Review of  Operations

The key exploration commitment in the period continued to be focussed on the projects at Fifi eld NSW for the source of  primary 
coarse grain platinum (Pt) and associated gold (Au).  Exploration at Bingara NSW for the primary source of  diamond was modest 
in the period, due to the larger commitment at Fifi eld by the Company.

It is the Company’s view that the overall inherent characteristics of  the coarse grain Pt, particularly the simple gravity recovery and 
the extensive nature of  the mineralisation,  makes this style of  Pt an excellent commercial target, with favourable mining potential, 
should suffi cient grade and tonnage be determined at Platina-Gillenbine and surrounding areas.
  
Exploration programs conducted have used an extensive array of  techniques, well suited to the mineralisation style, including soil 
sampling, trenching, auger drilling and large scale bulk sampling at Pit One within the Platina–Gillenbine area.   

Observation of  differing mineral occurrences, including Pt, Au and base metal at Fifi eld demonstrates that metal zoning remains an 
important feature of  the regional geology. It is still the Company’s view that the Fifi eld area is under-explored and thus represents 
an excellent exploration setting for commercial mineralisation discovery.  The primary mineralisation focus for exploration by the 
Company at Fifi eld still remains as coarse grain platinum.

The signifi cant nature of  the primary Pt province at Fifi eld, and Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining’s leading role in the exploration effort 
and understanding of  this area, means the Company will continue with regional geochemistry reviews at Fifi eld.  This type of  
approach already led to the discovery of  the “Ebenezer Pt Prospect”, covering 4km2.

The Company’s processing facilities at Fifi eld were increased and improved in the period. The plant and equipment available now 
have greater fl exibility, allowing the Company to conduct low cost processing on a wider range of  sample feed sizes.  Regulatory 
compliance with environmental standards and health and safety requirements occupied considerable time in the period, particularly 
with the commissioning of  the Pit One bulk sampling area.

The price of  Pt traded in the range of  USD1,000 to USD1,300/ounce during the period.  In the Company’s view, the outlook still 
remains broadly positive in the medium term for Pt.

With regards to the Bingara diamond project, the Company conducted modest activities at Bingara including additional soil 
sampling, and petrological examination.  Field programs during the period were focussed on the Trevallyn area.  The Company 
will continue with this successful exploration formula, albeit at a slower rate, for new “pipe discoveries”.  This will build upon 
earlier discoveries made by the Company, namely, the Horton Valley No.1 Pipe at Tom and Jerry Mountain and a second “pipe”, 
the Horton Valley No.2 Pipe at Back Creek, Glen Idle.  

The ongoing success of  the Company’s exploration can be directly attributed to the tireless fi eld work and efforts of  Colin 
Plumridge, who is the consulting geologist and exploration manager, and his team at Fifi eld.  Therefore, on behalf  of  the Board 
of  Directors and shareholders, the Company offers its gratitude to Mr Plumridge for his committed and incisive professionalism 
in the period.  In addition, the Board extends its sincere gratitude to all contractors and employees who have made valuable 
contributions to the Company during the period. 
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Directors’ Report

 Financial Position

The net assets of  the consolidated entity have decreased from $6,063,353 at 30 June 2008 to $5,856,932.  The Company fully 
repaid its mortgage ($107,000) secured over its freehold land with cash and cash equivalents now standing at $1,351,869.  The 
Company continued to contain overhead costs during the fi nancial year.   

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies

The higher level goal for the Company is to continue to develop its core Pt projects at Fifi eld, particularly focusing on the Platina-
Gillenbine area and the Company freehold location.  

Although recognising no resource is yet established, the Platina - Gillenbine Pt project area still has the potential to develop into 
a minable resource at some point in the future, in the Board’s opinion.  The Company is also pursuing the extensive Pt and Au 
bearing gravel system on its freehold, as a potential commercial target.  This is consistent with the Company’s primary exploration 
needs, to investigate the underlying bedrock for coarse grain Pt and Au.  The Pit One sampling program is the fi rst phase of  such 
an approach.

At the Bingara diamond area, the Company believes that it has a geological model of  substance and an exploration methodology 
with a track record for “pipe” discovery as demonstrated by the discovery of  “Horton Valley No.1 Pipe” and the “Horton Valley 
No.2 Pipe”. The Trevallyn area will be pursued at Bingara as the next stage of  exploration for the Company.  

Within the period, the Company maintained a low cost operating structure and this will continue to be closely monitored during 
the next fi nancial year, in a climate of  more diffi cult fi nancing in the exploration industry, due to less global fi nancial market 
stability.

Operating Results

The loss of  the consolidated entity amounted to $289,895 (2008: $454,416).

Dividends

No dividends were paid during the fi nancial year, nor are any recommended at 30 June 2009.

No Signifi cant Changes in State of  Affairs

The Company has continued to focus its operations and concentrate its efforts on its Pt exploration at the Fifi eld, NSW area, and 
the Bingara-Copeton diamond exploration in New South Wales.  

After Balance Date Events

There are no matters or circumstances which have arisen since the end of  the fi nancial year which signifi cantly affected or 
may signifi cantly affect the operations of  the consolidated entity, the results of  those operations, or the state of  affairs of  the 
consolidated entity in future fi nancial years.

Environmental Issues

The consolidated entity aims to ensure that the highest standard of  environmental care is achieved.  The Board maintains the 
responsibility to ensure that the consolidated entity’s environment policies are adhered to and to ensure that the consolidated 
entity is aware of  and is in compliance with all relevant environmental legislation.  There have been no environmental breaches 
during the 2009 fi nancial year.



Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL - 2009 Annual Report to Shareholders
Page 18

Information on Directors -

John Kaminsky  (Executive Chairman and Director) 
Bachelor of  Applied Science (Chemistry) (RMIT) and MBA (Melbourne Business School)

John Kaminsky was appointed Director of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL and Axis Mining NL in April 2004.  He brings strong 
strategic and international skills to the company and has more than 20 years experience in international trade, including chemicals, 
plastics, metals, minerals, ores, concentrates and energy products.  He assumed the role of  Executive Chairman in December 
2004.

Graham Billinghurst  (Non-Executive Director and Secretary)

Graham Billinghurst became a Director of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL and Axis Mining NL in May 1999 and comes to the Board 
with an extensive background in investment banking and corporate development in the Australasian region. As an investment 
banker and fi nance director, he brings to the Board extensive corporate, fi nancial and commercial expertise.

Ramona  Enconniere  (Non-Executive Director)
Bachelor of  Commerce (University of  Melbourne) and MBA (Melbourne Business School)

Ramona Enconniere became a Director in May 2005 and has professional affi liations with the Australian Society of  CPA and the 
Australian Institute of  Banking and Finance. Ramona makes an excellent contribution to the Board through her experience gained 
in corporate banking and the funding of  mergers and acquisitions, loan syndications, project fi nancing, debt raising via capital 
markets/securitisation with Citibank, Bank of  America, OCBC (Overseas-Chinese Bank Corporation) and National Australia 
Bank.

Andrew Knox  (Non-Executive Director)
Bachelor of  Commerce (University of  Western Australia) CA, CPA, FAICD

Andrew Knox was appointed Director in July 2005 and has been a Director of  several Australian Public Companies which have 
been involved in the resource industry.  He has substantial experience in the acquisition and assessment of  business opportunities 
in the resource sector, comprising potential takeover targets, production/non-production reserves, infrastructure and general 
market opportunities and the related fund raising required.  Andrew’s depth of  industry experience, public company involvement 
and fi nancial market understanding make an extremely valuable contribution to the Board.   

Meetings of  Directors

During the fi nancial year, 7 meetings of  Directors (including annual general meeting and special meetings) were held.  Attendances 
by each Director during the year were:

Directors' Meetings

Number eligible 
to attend

Number 
attended

John Kaminsky 7 7

Graham Billinghurst 7 6

Ramona Enconniere 7 7

Andrew Knox 7 6

Directors’ Report
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Options

At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL under option are as follows:

Note that 6,000,000 unlisted options granted on 20/12/2006, disclosed in the prior year report, expired on 
30/09/2008. 
During the year ended 30 June 2009, the following ordinary shares of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL were issued on the 
exercise of options granted to the Executive Chairman.  

No person entitled to exercise any options had or has any right by virtue of the options to participate in any share issue 
of any other body corporate.

As at 30 June 2009 7,500,000 unlisted options were on hand.
            
No further options have been issued since the end of the financial year.

Directors’ Shareholdings

The Directors disclose their interest in shares, as at the date of this report:

Grant Date Date of Expiry Exercise Price Number under Option

14/12/2007 30/09/2010 $0.12 7,500,000

7,500,000

Issue Date of Shares Exercise Price Number of Shares Issued

11/07/2008 - 750,000

10/12/2008 - 750,000

Shares held benefi cially:

John Kaminsky 15,766,666

Graham Billinghurst Nil

Ramona Enconniere 2,710,000

Andrew Knox 4,166,666

Shares in which there is a relevant interest:

John Kaminsky 4,512,666

Graham Billinghurst 11,379,166

Ramona Enconniere 3,583,333

Andrew Knox 1,500,000

Directors’ Report
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Remuneration Report

This report details the nature and amount of  remuneration for each Director of  Rimfire Pacific Mining NL, and for the 
executives receiving the highest remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of  Rimfire Pacific Mining NL has been designed to align Director and executive objectives 
with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and offering specific long term 
incentives based on key performance areas affecting the consolidated entity’s financial results.  The Board of  Rimfire Pacific 
Mining NL believes the remuneration policy to be appropriate and effective, but has established a Remuneration Review 
Committee to allow the Company to maintain its ability to attract and retain the best executives and Directors to run and 
manage the consolidated entity, as well as create goal congruence between Directors, executives and shareholders.

The Board’s policy for determining the nature and amount of  remuneration for Board members and senior executives of  
the consolidated entity is detailed below:

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for executive directors and other senior executives, was approved 
by the Board. All executives are entitled to receive a base salary (which is based on factors such as length of  service and 
experience), superannuation, fringe benefits and options.  Benefits to non executive Directors consisted exclusively of  
non cash benefits in the period. The Board reviews executive and non executive packages annually by reference to the 
consolidated entity’s performance, executive performance and comparable information from industry sectors and other 
listed companies in similar industries.

As a junior exploration company the key performance criteria for the Directors and executives relate to their ability to 
bring ideas, business skills, experience, appropriate networks, capital raising initiatives, promotional strategies, expenditure 
plans and pursue exploration programs through selection of  appropriate technical specialists whilst exercising prudent 
judgement that can create significant shareholder value.  This must all be conducted within modest financial resources, so 
efficiency and effectiveness are key performance measures by which the Directors need to be assessed. 

Key objectives were set by the Board for the Executive Chairman of  the Company, and were outlined in the General 
meeting of  Shareholders held on 4 April 2005.  The Board refers to these historic guidelines and modifies the content 
according to the specific needs of  the Company and its strategies going forward.  The Executive Chairman has a one year 
appointment to 30 November 2009.

Directors and Executives of  the Company are also entitled to participate in share and option arrangements, subject to 
shareholder approval.

All remuneration paid to Directors and executives is valued at the cost to the company and expensed.  Shares given to 
Directors and executives are valued as the difference between the market price of  those shares and the amount paid by the 
Director or executive. Options are valued using the Black-Scholes or Binomial methodology (as disclosed in remuneration 
tables) and are now expensed under the accounting standards.

The Board’s policy is to remunerate non-executive Directors at market rates for comparable companies for time, 
commitment and responsibilities.  The remuneration committee determines payments to the non-executive Directors and 
reviews their remuneration annually, based on market practice, duties and accountability. Independent external advice 
is sought when required.  The maximum aggregate amount of  fees that can be paid to non-executive Directors is not 
linked directly to the performance of  the consolidated entity, however, the Board is conscious of  its responsibilities and is 
mindful of  the performance of  the Company, so has acted accordingly, in formulating remuneration and incentive levels. 
To align Directors’ interests with shareholder interests, the Directors are encouraged to hold shares in the company.

It should be noted that the non executive directors of  the Company have received no cash payments for service as 
directors of  the Company since the 30 June 2004 period (i.e. the last five periods). This particular policy will need to 
be re-examined in the context of  the need to sufficiently incentivise non-executive directors for the time, effort and 
responsibilities required of  them.
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2009

Primary
Salary, Fees & 
Commissions

$

Post
 Employment

Superannuation 
Contributions

$

Equity 
Compensation

Shares & Options
$

Total

$
Name of Director Cash Bonus

$
Non-Executive Directors

A. Knox Nil Nil Nil 22,500 (i) 22,500
G. Billinghurst Nil Nil Nil 22,500 (i) 22,500
R Enconniere Nil Nil Nil 22,500 (i) 22,500

Executive Director
J Kaminsky 126,055 Nil 45,945 15,974 (ii) 187,974

126,055 Nil 45,945 83,474 255,474

Remuneration Report

Details of Remuneration for the Year Ended 30 June 2009

The remuneration for each Director of the consolidated entity receiving the highest remuneration during the year was 
as follows:

All of  the assumptions underlying the Binomial method of  valuing options have been applied to arrive at a value of  options 
issued to Directors.  Fair values of  options granted as part of  remuneration are estimates only.  The estimates are based on the 
degree of  probability of  future performance hurdles being met, combined with the use of  the Binomial Model.  This model takes 
account of  factors such as the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of  the underlying share price and the timing 
to maturity of  the option.

Performance Income as a Proportion of  Total Remuneration

No performance based bonuses were paid during the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: nil).

Options Issued as Part of  Remuneration for the Year Ended 30 June 2009

Options are issued to Directors and executives as part of  their remuneration offering longer term incentive.  The options are 
issued based on the remuneration policies of  the Board, which do not necessarily rely on strict performance hurdles, yet do take 
into consideration a range of  performance criteria. The options are issued to the Directors and executives of  Rimfi re Pacifi c 
Mining NL and its subsidiary to increase goal congruence between executives, Directors and shareholders.

2009

Primary
Salary, Fees & 
Commissions

$

Post 
Employment

Superannuation 
Contributions

$

Equity 
Compensation

Shares & Options
$

Total

$
Name of Director Cash Bonus

$

Non-Executive Directors

A. Knox Nil Nil Nil 36,692 22,500
G. Billinghurst Nil Nil Nil 36,692 22,500
R Enconniere Nil Nil Nil 36,692 22,500

Executive Director
J Kaminsky 134,000 Nil Nil 80,615 214,615 

134,000 Nil Nil 190,691 324,691

(i) Shares issued during the year
(ii) Amortisation expense of options issued in prior years
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Remuneration Report

Options 
Granted Options Exercised

Options 
Lapsed

Total value 
of  options 
granted, 
exercised 

and lapsed

Value of  
shares and 

options 
included in 

remuneration 
for the year

% of  total 
remuneration 
for the year 

that consists of  
shares & options

Directors

No.

Value at 
Grant 
Date

$ No.

Value at 
exercise 

date
$

Value at 
time of  
lapse

$

J. Kaminsky - - 1,500,000 73,500 2,207 75,707 15,974 8

A. Knox - - - - 2,207 2,207 22,500 100

R. Enconniere - - - - 2,207 2,207 22,500 100

G. Billinghurst - - - - 4,415 4,415 22,500 100

No options were issued as part of  remuneration during the year.  As at 30 June 2009 all outstanding options have vested.

Employment Contracts of  Directors

The engagement conditions of  the Executive Chairman, Mr J Kaminsky, are formalised in a consulting agreement which 
commenced on 1 December 2008 and expires on 30 November 2009.

The consulting agreement stipulates a one month resignation period.  The Company may terminate the agreement without cause 
by providing 3 months written notice.  Upon termination of  the agreement, the individual is entitled to payment of  accrued and 
outstanding remuneration entitlements to which the individual is or would have become entitled to during the full contract period 
of  employment. 

Executives 

There were no executives other than the Executive Chairman at balance date.

Indemnifying Offi cers 

In accordance with commercial practice, the insurance policy prohibits disclosure of  the terms of  the policy, including the nature 
of  the liability insured against and the amount of  the premium. 

The company has not otherwise during or since the fi nancial year, indemnifi ed or agreed to indemnify an offi cer or auditor of  the 
company or any related body corporate against a liability incurred as such an offi cer or auditor.

Directors covered by the Directors & Offi cers Liability Insurance Policy at the time of  this report are:

Mr John Kaminsky
Ms Ramona Enconniere 

Proceedings on Behalf  of  the Company

No person has applied for leave of  Court to bring proceedings on behalf  of  the Company or intervene in any proceedings to 
which the Company is a party for the purpose of  taking responsibility on behalf  of  the Company for all or any part of  those 
proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the fi nancial year.

Mr Graham Billinghurst 
Mr Andrew Knox 
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Remuneration Report

The auditor independence declaration required under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 forms part of this 
Directors’ Report and is included on page 24.

Non-Audit Services

There were no non-audit services provided by PKF Chartered Accountants during the financial year.

    Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

  Director                             John Kaminsky     
  
  Dated this                 4th          day of         September         2009 
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Auditor’s Independance Declaration

 

Tel: 61 3 9603 1700  |  Fax: 61 3 9602 3870  |  www.pkf.com.au 

PKF  |  ABN 83 236 985 726 

Level 14, 140 William Street  |  Melbourne  |  Victoria 3000  |  Australia 

GPO Box 5099  |  Melbourne  |  Victoria 3001  

The PKF East Coast Practice is a member of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent member firms. The PKF East Coast Practice is also a member 
of the PKF Australia Limited national network of legally independent firms each trading as PKF. PKF East Coast Practice has offices in NSW, Victoria and Brisbane. PKF 
East Coast Practice does not accept responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
 
As lead auditor for the audit of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL for the year ended 30 June 2009, I declare 
that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 
 
(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 

relation to the audit; and 
 
(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 
 
This declaration is in respect of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL and the entity it controlled during the year. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

J A Mooney 
Partner 
PKF 
 
 
4 September 2009 
Melbourne 
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Corporate Governance Statement

Introduction 

The Directors of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL recognise the need for high standards of  corporate governance and are focused on 
fulfi lling their responsibilities individually and as a Board to all of  the Company stakeholders. The Board supports the guidelines 
on the “Principles of  Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations” (“Principles”) established by the ASX 
Corporate Governance Council. 

Given the size and structure of  the Company, the nature of  its business, the stage of  its development and the cost of  strict and 
detailed compliance with all of  the recommendations the Company has adopted some modifi ed systems, procedures and practices 
which it considers allow it to reasonably meet the principles of  good corporate governance. 

The Company practices aim for consistency with those of  the guidelines and its recommendations. The Company considers that it 
has adopted practices that are appropriate to the Company’s circumstance in this regard. At the end of  this Corporate Governance 
Statement a table is included detailing the recommendations with which the Company does not strictly comply, including reasons 
for departure from any stated Principles. 

The following sections outline the Company practices in complying with the Principles. 

Principle 1: Laying Solid Foundations for Management and Oversight 

The role of  the Board is to lead and oversee the management and direction of  the Company. 

After appropriate consultation with executive management, the Board: 

Defi nes and sets its business objectives. It subsequently monitors performance and achievements of   the Company’s objectives 1. 
and that of  senior management; 

Oversees the reporting on matters of  compliance with corporate policies and laws, takes responsibility for risk management 2. 
processes and a review of  executive management, remuneration practices and insurance needs of  the Company; 

Monitors and approves fi nancial performance and budgets; and 3. 

Reports to shareholders. 4. 

As part of  the execution of  their duties, Directors are involved in various subcommittees related to focused aspects of  the Company.  
The Directors are able and encouraged to seek external professional advice as may be required, depending on circumstance. 

In addition, Directors have a duty to disclose and appropriately report matters that affect their independence and conform to the 
Company’s trading policy governing dealings in the Company’s securities, including any related fi nancial instruments.

During the period, a review of  executive performance was undertaken by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the 
Company’s stated review process and benchmarking.

Each member of  the Board has committed to spending suffi cient time to enable them to carry out their duties as a Director of  
the Company. One third of  the Directors retire annually and are free to seek re-election by shareholders.
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Principle 2: Structuring the Board to Add Value 

Composition of  the Board 

The ASX Corporate Governance Council recommends that composition of  the Board be determined so as to provide a Company 
with a broad base of  industry, business, technical, administrative and corporate skill and experience considered necessary to 
represent shareholders and fulfi ll the business objectives of  a Company. 
The recommendations of  best practice are that a majority of  the Directors and in particular the chairperson should be independent. 
An independent Director is one who: 

Does not hold an executive position; 1. 

Is not a substantial shareholder of  the Company or an offi cer or otherwise associated directly or indirectly with a substantial 2. 
shareholder of  the Company; 

Has not within the last 3 years been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or another group member or been a 3. 
Director after ceasing to hold such employment; 

Is not a principal of  a professional adviser to the Company or another group member;4. 

Is not a signifi cant supplier or customer of  the Company or another group member, or an offi cer of, or otherwise associated 5. 
directly or indirectly with a signifi cant supplier or customer; 

Has no signifi cant contractual relationship with the Company or any other group member other than as a Director of  the 6. 
Company; and 

Is free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could or could reasonably be perceived to materially 7. 
interfere with the Directors ability to act in the best interests of  the Company. 

It is considered that a majority of  independent Directors is the optimal composition to add value to the Company.  This is due 
to the size and nature of  the Company's business and risk profi le of  the Company.  Corporate Governance practices are in place 
to support competent and objective operation of  the Board and to provide investor assurance in relation to Board decision 
making.

As a junior exploration company, the key performance criteria for the Directors and executives relate to their ability to bring ideas, 
general business skills, experience, appropriate networks, risk assessment skills, capital raising initiatives, promotional strategies, 
expenditure plans and pursue exploration programs through appropriately selected technical specialists whilst exercising prudent 
judgment that can create signifi cant shareholder value.  This must all be conducted within modest fi nancial resources, so effi ciency 
and effectiveness are key performance measures by which the Directors are assessed.  

The Board regularly discusses and reviews its performance. The chairperson also discusses with each Director their requirements, 
performances and aspects of  involvement in the Company. The Non-Executive Directors discuss and evaluate the role fulfi lled 
by management individually and together. This is reviewed against the discussed and agreed objectives of  the Company and the 
effectiveness in carrying out those objectives. 

Nomination of  Other Board Members

Due to the small size of  the Company, no Nomination Committee exists currently, this function is adopted by the Board of  
Directors, which at least annually, reviews its composition to determine if  additional core strengths are required to be added to 
the Board in light of  the nature of  the Company businesses and its objectives. 

Independent Advice 

Each of  the Directors is entitled to seek independent advice at Company expense to assist them to carry out their 
responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Statement
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Principle 3: Promotion of  Ethical and Responsible Decision-Making 

Directors, offi cers, employees and consultants to the Company are required to observe high standards of  behaviour and business 
ethics in conducting business on behalf  of  the Company and they are required to maintain a reputation of  integrity on the part 
of  both the Company and themselves. The Company does not contract with or otherwise engage any person or party where it 
considers integrity may be compromised. 

Directors are required to disclose to the Board actual or potential confl icts of  interest that may or might reasonably be thought to 
exist between the interests of  the Director or the interests of  any other party in so far as it affects the activities of  the Company 
and to act in accordance with the Corporations Act if  confl ict cannot be removed or if  it persists. That involves taking no part in 
the decision making process or discussions where that confl ict does arise. 

Directors are required to make disclosure of  any share trading. The Company policy in relation to share trading is that offi cers, 
employees and contractors are prohibited to trade whilst in possession of  unpublished price sensitive information concerning 
the Company. That is information which a reasonable person would expect to have a material affect on the price or value of  the 
Company shares. An offi cer must discuss the proposal to acquire or sell shares with the Chairman prior to doing so to ensure 
that there is no price sensitive information of  which that offi cer might not be aware. The undertaking of  any trading in shares by 
Directors must be notifi ed to the Company and Chairman who makes disclosure to ASX within the required reporting time-table 
guidelines.   

Principle 4: Safe Guarding Integrity in Financial Reporting 

An Audit Committee operates within the Company. 

The committee consists of  the following:

A Knox (Chairman) Non Executive Director
R Enconniere  Non Executive Director
J Kaminsky  Executive Director

The main responsibilities of  the Audit Committee are to:

Review the annual fi nancial statements with the Executive Chairman and the external auditors and make appropriate 1. 
recommendations to the Board;

Review all regular fi nancial reports to be made to the public prior to their release and make appropriate recommendations 2. 
to the Board;

Monitor compliance with statutory and Australian requirements for fi nancial reporting;3. 

Review reports from management and external auditors on any signifi cant proposed regulatory, accounting or reporting 4. 
issues, to assess the potential impact on the Company’s fi nancial reporting process.

The Executive Chairman is required to state in writing that the Company’s Financial Reports present a true and fair view in all 
material respects of  the Company’s fi nancial condition and operational results in accordance with relevant accounting standards.

The committee is also charged with the responsibilities of  recommending to the Board the appointment, removal and remuneration 
of  the external auditors and reviewing the terms of  their engagement and the scope and quality of  the audit.

An analysis of  fees paid to the external auditors, including a breakdown of  fees of  non audit services, is provided in the notes to 
the fi nancial statements.   It is the policy of  the external auditors to provide an annual declaration of  their independence to the 
Board.

Each Board member has access to the external auditors and the auditor has access to each Board member. 

Corporate Governance Statement
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Principle 5: Making Timely and Balanced Disclosure 

The Executive Chairman has been nominated as the person responsible for communications with the Australian Securities Exchange 
(ASX).  This role includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with the continuous disclosure requirement in the ASX Listing Rules 
and overseeing and co-coordinating information disclosure to the ASX, analysts, brokers, shareholders, the media and the public.

All material information concerning the Company, including its fi nancial situation, performance, ownership and governance are 
posted on the Company web site to ensure all investors have equal and timely access.

Principle 6: Respecting the Rights of  Shareholders 

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure that its shareholders are informed of  all major developments affecting the Company.  

All shareholders who nominate to do so receive a copy of  the Company’s annual report. The annual, half  yearly and quarterly 
reports are prepared in accordance of  the ASX Listing Rules and are posted on the Company’s web site.
Regular updates on operations are made via ASX releases, including links to any audiocast or video materials.

Information on the Company is posted on the Company’s website.  This amongst other information includes all text in relation 
to any notices on meetings to be held by the Company.   When analysts are briefed on aspects of  the Company’s operation, the 
material used in the presentation is released to the ASX and posted on the Company’s website.

The Company has maintained its website during the past year, inclusive of  the last 3 years of  all ASX release materials, which also 
incorporates fi nancial information in this time.  The website includes the option for shareholders to contact the Company for 
clarifi cation and receive direct updates of  Company matters.

The external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder questions about the 
conduct of  the audit and the preparation and content of  the audit report.

Principle 7: Recognising and Managing Risk 

A key element of  the Board’s role is the assessment of  risk and the subsequent management of  risk.  Key risk areas for the 
Company include, amongst other things, exploration success risk, fi nancial markets and economic cycle risk, commodity risk and 
key personnel risk.  These are reviewed on a continuous basis and then specifi cally reviewed again at each Board meeting.

The issue with respect to risk in exploration is one of  balancing the potential rewards with the cost of  conducting adequate 
exploration programs.  The Company employs a number of  strategies to mitigate its risks including considering the farming out of  
exploration prospects, acquiring more information in order to better defi ne targets within exploration prospects and maximising 
the use of  lower cost exploration techniques. The Company utilises industry standard drafting techniques and software to map, log 
and assess its prospects for ongoing exploration suitability.  Peer review of  prospects, by both internal and third party consultants, 
is used when considered necessary, to consider exploration assumptions at various times.

The Company would be subject to commodity and currency price fl uctuation through the sale of  commodities denominated in 
$US.  The Company monitors certain commodity and currency movements and possible methods available to manage any such 
movements in price risk.  However, the Company has no consistent current commercial production at this time, except potential 
by product from bulk sampling programs, so the Board does not consider price risk to be a signifi cant factor at this time.  Interest 
rate risk is assessed according to reporting guidelines.

The Board is responsible for approval of  the acquisition and disposal of  exploration and development interests.  The Board is 
also responsible for overseeing identifi cation and development of  strategies to mitigate price risk, including hedging and also asset 
protection and potential liabilities via insurance.

The Company has in place internal control processes, and undertakes such modifi cations as are necessary to ensure reasonable 
levels of  control are maintained.

Monitoring the performance of  the Company’s fi nancial status and matching this adequately to the current business and economic 
cycles are key areas for Board risk assessment.  Authorisation of  equity raisings, entering into debt facilities and major capital 
expenditure or commitments require Board approval. All routine operating expenditures are the responsibility of  management in 
accordance with programmes and budgets approved by the Board.

The Company currently has personnel of  less than 10, which does not include an internal audit function.  In relation to its 
responsibilities the Board’s consideration includes the following:
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Review of  internal controls and recommendations of  enhancements1. 

Monitoring of  compliance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Stock Exchange, Australian Taxation Offi ce and 2. 
Australian Securities Investments Commission requirements

Improving the quality of  the management and accounting information3. 

Follow-up and rectifi cation by management of  defi ciencies or breakdown in controls or procedures.4. 

The Executive Chairman provides a declaration under Section 295A, on behalf  of  the Company and its subsidiaries, that the 
fi nancial position of  the Company for the year of  concern is a true and fair view, complying with the necessary Accounting 
Standards and Corporations Act regulations.  

Principle 8: Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly 
A Remuneration Committee operates within the Company.

The committee consists of  the following:
A Knox (Chairman)• 
R Enconniere• 
J Kaminsky (and alternate G Billinghurst)• 

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages and other terms of  employment.  
Reviews are conducted annually, or earlier if  required, by the committee having regard to performance and relevant comparative 
information.  As well as a base salary, remuneration packages include superannuation, termination entitlements, fringe benefi ts 
and securities.

Remuneration packages are set at levels that are intended to attract and retain high calibre staff  and align the interest of  the 
executives with those of  the Company shareholders.  Remuneration of  Non-Executive Directors is treated separately and 
determined by the Board within the maximum amount approved by the shareholders from time to time.

Further information on Directors' and Executives' remuneration is set out in the Directors' Report and Remuneration Report.

Table of  Departures and Explanations (from the recommendations of  the ASX Corporate Governance Council) 

Recommendation 
Reference         
(Principle           
Number         
reference)

Departure from Recommendation Explanation for Departure

2.2 & 2.3 The Chairman is an Executive Director and 
has a substantial associated shareholding in 
the Company and therefore does not meet 
the test of  independence. 

The Board considers that the Chairman is capable of  
acting independently and is suffi ciently experienced to 
fulfi l that role. 

2.4 No separate Nomination Committee 
currently exists

As a small Company, it is considered more practical for 
the Board as a whole to take on the responsibility for new 
Director nomination ideas. 

2.5 There has been no formal disclosure of  the 
process for performance evaluation of  the 
Board, committees, individual Directors 
and key Executives.

Given the size of  the Company and the involvement of  all 
four Directors a policy has not been required to date. The 
Directors continually monitor and discuss performance.
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Recommendation 
Reference         
(Principle           
Number         
reference)

Departure from Recommendation Explanation for Departure

3.1 No formal code of conduct has been 
established as to practices necessary to 
maintain confi dence in the Company 
integrity or as to reporting and 
investigating unethical practices.  
Similarly, There has been no disclosure 
of the code of conduct to deal with 
compliance for legal or other obligations 
to legitimate stakeholders.

It is not considered that a code of conduct or reporting 
guide is yet necessary. The principles are followed. The 
business practices adopted by the Board recognise that 
proper compliance with legal and other obligations is 
mandatory for all Directors and the Company as a whole.

4.2 The structure of the Audit Committee 
comprises 3 Directors, both Executive 
and Non Executive Directors, but has a 
majority of Non-Executive Directors.  

Given the size of the Company, it is appropriate in the 
Board’s opinion to include the Executive Chairman 
within the Audit Committee.  A Non-Executive 
Director is the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

4.3 The Audit Committee does not have a 
formal charter.

Given the size of the Company, the entire Board works 
intimately with the Executive management and Audit 
Committee.  The Board feels that adequate procedures 
are in place that a formal audit charter is not necessary 
at this time.

5.1 Limited written policy and procedure 
exists to ensure that compliance with ASX 
Listing Rules disclosure requirements 
are met at senior management level. 

There is only one senior Executive of the Company and 
the Board does not consider that a written policy is at this 
time required. It will be reviewed as the activities of the 
Company increase. 

6.1 The Company has no formally designed 
or disclosed communication strategy 
with shareholders, beyond ensuring 
continuous disclosure is met.  The ASX 
announcement platform is the main basis 
for communication with shareholders. 

The Board is conscious of the need to continually keep 
shareholders and markets advised. The procedures 
adopted within the Company, although not written, are 
weighted towards informing shareholders and markets. 

7.1 & 7.2 There has been no written 
implementation of policy on risk 
oversight and management or for senior 
management to make statements to 
the Board concerning those matters. 
However, risk assessment discussion is 
an integral part of management and the 
Board’s activities on a regular basis.

Given the nature and size of the Company, its business 
interests and the involvement of all Directors who all 
have business management skills, it is not considered 
necessary to establish this practice at this time. Each 
member of the Board is in regular contact with senior 
exploration management, to assist the understanding 
of this key business risk. 

7.3 The Company receives a statement 
of compliance under Section 295A 
concerning the integrity of the fi nancial 
statements from the Executive Chairman, 
but the Company has no Chief Financial 
Offi cer given the size of the Company.

The Company complies with the spirit of the guidelines in 
this regard, but given the small size of the Company, it is not 
envisaged an internal fi nancial offi cer would be appointed 
in the immediate future.  The Company and Board work 
with the Company’s external auditors and accountants to 
ensure a suitable compliance statement is authorised.
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Schedule of Mining Tenements

Project Area Units Reference
Date 

Granted
Expiry Date

Registered 
Holder

State Mineral Focus

Fifi eld 15 EL6241 17-May-04 16-May-10 100% Rimfi re NSW
Platinum/ Gold/

Base Metal.

Fifi eld 40 EL5534 23-Oct-98 22-Oct-10 100% Rimfi re NSW
Platinum/ Gold/

Base Metal.

Fifi eld. 9 EL5565 a 24-Mar-99 23-Mar-09 100% Rimfi re NSW Platinum.

Fifi eld. 70 EL7058 1-Feb-08 31-Jan-10 100% Rimfi re NSW
Platinum/ Gold/

Base Metal.

Fifi eld. 25 EL6144 24-Oct-03 23-Oct-09 100% Rimfi re NSW
Platinum/ Gold/

Base Metal.

Fifi eld. 4 EL7233 31-Oct-08 30-Oct-10 100% Rimfi re NSW Gold/Base metal

Fifi eld. 13 EL7234 31-Oct-08 30-Oct-10 100% Rimfi re NSW Gold/Base Metal.

Fifi eld 1.9ha MC305 17-Nov-04 17-Nov-09 100% Rimfi re NSW
Gold/Platinum/

Silver

Fifi eld 2ha MC 306 17-Nov-04 17-Nov-09 100% Rimfi re NSW
Gold/Platinum/

Silver

Bingara Diamonds 69 EL6106b 29-Jul-03 28-Jul-09 100% Rimfi re NSW Diamonds.

Bingara Diamonds 2 EL5880c 31-July-01. 30-Jul-09 100% Rimfi re NSW Diamonds.

Bingara Diamonds 6 EL6892 4-Oct-07 3-Oct-09 100% Rimfi re NSW Diamonds

Bingara Diamonds 9 EL6893 4-Oct-07 3-Oct-09 100% Rimfi re NSW Diamonds

Bingara Diamonds 37 EL6894 4-Oct-07 3-Oct-09 100% Rimfi re NSW Diamonds

Broken Hill 74 EL5958 d 24-Jun-07 26-Jun-09 100% Rimfi re NSW Base Metals

Notes: 

a, b, c - Renewal applications have been lodged

d – Rimfire retains a 10% free carried interest. Perilyna is the operator, holding a 90% interest.
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Income Statement 
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009
$

2008
$

2009
$

2008
$

Revenue from continuing operations 2 122,654 135,928 122,654 135,928

Employees benefits expense (45,979) (101,866) (45,979) (101,866)

Directors’ securities non-cash benefits expense (83,474) (190,691) (83,474) (190,691)

Professional costs (114,895) (111,555) (114,895) (111,555)

Occupancy costs (28,183) (20,331) (28,183) (20,331)

Travel costs (14,959) (18,831) (14,959) (18,831)

Marketing expense (9,664) (6,708) (9,664) (6,708)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (15,953) (11,870) (15,953) (11,870)

Insurance (14,761) (14,518) (14,761) (14,518)

Share registry and listing expenses (32,215) (49,177) (32,215) (49,177)

Information and technology expense (4,615) (7,229) (4,615) (7,229)

Impairment write off on exploration costs (8,397) (15,059) (8,397) (15,059)

Loss on disposals of property, plant and 
equipment

- (3,038) - (3,038)

Other expenses (35,183) (30,874) (35,183) (30,874)

Finance costs (4,271) (8,597) (4,271) (8,597)

Loss before income tax 3 (289,895) (454,416) (289,895) (454,416)

Income tax expense 4 - - - -

Loss for the year (289,895) (454,416) (289,895) (454,416)

Overall Operations

Basic earnings (loss) per share (cents per share) 7 (0.09) (0.17)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share (cents per 
share)

7 (0.09) (0.17)
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Note

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,351,869 2,424,785 1,351,869 2,424,785

Receivables 9 45,479 32,724 45,252 32,497

Other current assets 12 5,000 8,333 5,000 8,333

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,402,348 2,465,842 1,402,121 2,465,615

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 9 162,969 172,969 162,969 172,969

Property, plant and equipment 11 309,541 283,737 309,541 283,737

Exploration & evaluation costs carried forward 13 4,112,839 3,409,608 4,112,839 3,409,608

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,585,349 3,866,314 4,585,349 3,866,314

TOTAL ASSETS 5,987,697 6,332,156 5,987,470 6,331,929

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 14 128,060 160,970 126,560 159,470

Interest-bearing liabilities 15 833 107,833 833 107,833

Provisions 16 1,872 - 1,872 -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 130,765 268,803 129,265 267,303

TOTAL LIABILITIES 130,765 268,803 129,265 267,303

NET ASSETS 5,856,932 6,063,353 5,858,205 6,064,626

EQUITY

Contributed equity 17 14,681,951 14,598,477 14,681,951 14,598,477

Accumulated losses (8,825,019) (8,535,124) (8,823,746) (8,533,851)

TOTAL EQUITY 5,856,932 6,063,353 5,858,205 6,064,626

Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2009
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Consolidated Entity Year Ended 30 June 2009

Share Capital 
- Ordinary 

$

Accumulated 
Losses

$

Options 
Reserve

$
Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2008 14,598,477 (8,535,124) - 6,063,353
Shares issued during the year 67,500 - - 67,500
Transaction costs related to shares issued - - - -
Share options expense 15,974 - - 15,974

Loss attributable to the entity for the period - (289,895) - (289,895)

Balance at 30 June 2009 14,681,951 (8,825,019) - 5,856,932

Consolidated Entity Year Ended 30 June 2008

Share Capital - 
Ordinary

$

Accumulated 
Losses

$

Options 
Reserve

$
Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2007 12,102,530 (8,080,708) - 4,021,822
Shares issued during the year 2,638,719 - - 2,638,719
Transaction costs related to shares issued (238,758) - - (238,758)
Share options expense 95,986 - - 95,986
Loss attributable to the entity for the period - (454,416) - (454,416)

Balance at 30 June 2008 14,598,477 (8,535,124) - 6,063,353

Parent Entity Year Ended 30 June 2009

Share Capital – 
Ordinary

$

Accumulated 
Losses

$

Options 
Reserve

$
Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2008 14,598,477 (8,533,851) - 6,064,626
Shares issued during the period 67,500 - - 67,500
Transaction costs related to shares issued - - - -
Share options expense 15,974 - - 15,974
Loss attributable to the entity for the period - (289,895) - (289,895)

Balance at 30 June 2009 14,681,951 (8,823,746) - 5,858,205

Parent Entity Year Ended 30 June 2008

Share Capital – 
Ordinary

$

Accumulated 
Losses

$

Options 
Reserve

$
Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2007 12,102,530 (8,079,435) - 4,023,095
Shares issued during the period 2,638,719 - - 2,638,719
Transaction costs related to shares issued (238,758) - - (238,758)
Share options expense 95,986 - - 95,986
Loss attributable to the entity for the period - (454,416) - (454,416)

Balance at 30 June 2008 14,598,477 (8,533,851) - 6,064,626
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009
$

2008
$

2009
$

2008
$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments to suppliers and employees (311,928) (443,201) (311,928) (443,201)

Interest received 97,381 135,928 97,381 135,928

Interest and fi nance costs paid (4,271) (8,597) (4,271) (8,597)

Net cash used in operating activities 24a (218,818) (315,870) (218,818) (315,870)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of other non-current assets - (2,969) - (2,969)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (41,757) (24,896) (41,757) (24,896)

Payment for mining tenement exploration (696,014) (707,154) (696,014) (707,154)

Proceeds from refunds of sundry assets 10,000 - 10,000 -

Net cash used in investing activities (727,771) (735,019) (727,771) (735,019)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings (107,000) - (107,000) -

Proceeds from issue of shares - 2,541,219 - 2,541,219

Transaction costs associated with share issues (19,327) (211,507) (19,327) (211,507)

Net cash (used in)/ provided by fi nancing activities (126,327) 2,329,712 (126,327) 2,329,712

Net (decrease)/increase in cash held (1,072,916) 1,278,823 (1,072,916) 1,278,823

Cash at beginning of the year 2,424,785 1,145,962 2,424,785 1,145,962

Cash at end of the year 8 1,351,869 2,424,785 1,351,869 2,424,785
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1          Statement of  Accounting Policies

The fi nancial report is a general purpose fi nancial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements of  the Australian Accounting Standards 
Board and the Corporations Act 2001.

The fi nancial report covers the economic entity of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL and its controlled entity, and Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining 
NL as an individual parent entity.  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL is a listed public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The principal activities of  the consolidated entity during the fi nancial year were the exploration and development of  economic 
mineral deposits.

The fi nancial report of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL and its controlled entity, and Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL as an individual parent 
entity, comply with all Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS 
ensures that the fi nancial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The following is a summary of  the material accounting policies adopted by the economic entity in the preparation of  the fi nancial 
report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

The fi nancial report was authorised for issue by Directors on the date of  signing the directors’ declaration.

The fi nancial report is presented in Australian dollars, has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs.

Accounting Policies

a.        Signifi cant Judgements and Key Assumptions

Judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most signifi cant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the fi nancial statements concern the future successful exploration and development of  mining tenements including the 
saleability of  mined resources.

The following key assumption has been made concerning the future and other key sources of  estimation uncertainty at the 
balance date, that have a signifi cant risk of  causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of  assets and liabilities 
within the next fi nancial year.

It is assumed that the mining tenements currently being explored by the consolidated entity will be successfully developed 
with minerals being produced and commercially sold on the market at some future point, as yet unspecifi ed.  The production 
of  saleable minerals is assumed to be at least suffi cient to recover the costs of  exploration and development.  Should this 
assumption prove incorrect then material adjustments may have to be made for impairment losses in respect of  capitalised 
exploration costs.

The calculation of  the fair value of  options for purposes of  share based payments in respect of  options issued to directors in 
previous fi nancial years has been based on the binomial method of  option pricing.  This method requires the estimation of  the 
expected share price volatility in Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL which has been disclosed at Note 18 of  the fi nancial statements.

b.         Principles of  Consolidation

A controlled entity is any entity controlled by Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL. Control exists where Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL 
has the capacity to dominate the decision-making in relation to the fi nancial and operating policies of  another entity so 
that the other entity operates with Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL to achieve the objectives of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL. A 
list of  controlled entities is contained in Note 10 to the fi nancial statements. 
 
All inter-company balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated entity, including any unrealised profi ts or 
losses, have been eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of  subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to 
ensure consistencies with those policies applied by the parent entity. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost 
in the individual fi nancial reports of  Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL.

Where controlled entities have entered or left the consolidated entity during the year, their operating results have been 
included from the date control was obtained or until the date control ceased.

c.         Income Tax

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profi t for the year adjusted for any non-assessable or disallowed 
items. It is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or are substantially enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of  temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of  assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the fi nancial statements. No deferred income tax will be 
recognised from the initial recognition of  an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect 
on the taxable profi t or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or liability is 
settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it relates to items that may be credited directly to 
equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profi ts will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of  benefi ts brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that no 
adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the economic entity will derive suffi cient 
future assessable income to enable the benefi t to be realised and comply with the conditions of  deductibility imposed by 
the law.

Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiary have not formed an income tax consolidated group 
under the tax consolidation regime.

d.       Property, Plant and Equipment 

           Each class of  property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and 
           impairment losses.

 
Property

Freehold land and buildings are measured on the cost basis, being the amounts which have been paid for the asset.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis.
The carrying amount of  plant and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess of  the 
recoverable amount from these assets.  The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of  the expected net cash fl ows 
which will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal.  The expected net cash fl ows have been 
discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of  property, plant and equipment, but excluding freehold land, is depreciated using a reducing 
balance method commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  Leasehold improvements are depreciated over 
the shorter of  either the unexpired period of  the lease or the estimated useful lives of  the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of  depreciable assets are:

e.         Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefi ts remain with the lessor, are charged as 
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

f.         Exploration Evaluation and Development Expenditure

Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure incurred is accumulated in respect of  each identifi able area of  
interest.  These costs are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recouped through the successful 
development of  the area or where activities in the area have not yet reached a stage which permits reasonable assessment 
of  the existence of  economically recoverable reserves.

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate

Leasehold improvements 15%

Plant and equipment 7.5%-30%

Offi ce furniture 10%-40%

Motor Vehicles 19%
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Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned area are written off  in full against profi t in the year in which the decision 
to abandon the area is made.

When production commences, the accumulated costs for the relevant area of  interest will be amortised over the life of  the 
area according to the rate of  depletion of  the economically recoverable reserves.  

A regular review is undertaken of  each area of  interest to determine the appropriateness of  continuing to carry forward 
costs in relation to that area of  interest.

g.         Impairment of  Assets

At each reporting date, the group reviews the carrying values of  its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If  such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of  the 
asset, being the higher of  the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. 
Any excess of  the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefi nite lives.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of  an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable 
amount of  cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

h.        Employee Benefi ts

Provision is made for the Company’s liability for employee benefi ts arising from services rendered by employees to balance 
date. Employee benefi ts expected to be settled within one year including entitlements arising from wages and salaries and annual 
leave, have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled plus related on-costs. Other employee 
benefi ts payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of  the estimated future cash outfl ows to be made 
for those benefi ts. Contributions are made by the consolidated entity to employee superannuation funds and are charged as 
expenses when incurred.

i.         Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of  the cash fl ow statement, cash includes:
 — cash on hand and at call deposits with banks or fi nancial institutions net of  bank overdrafts.

j.         Receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables are recorded at amounts due less any allowance for doubtful debts. 

k.        Payables

Trade payables and other payables are recognised when the consolidated entity becomes obliged to make future payments 
resulting from the purchase of  goods and services. Payments are normally settled on 30 day terms.

l.         Financial Instruments 

Recognition
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the related 
contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profi t and loss
A fi nancial asset is classifi ed in this category if  acquired principally for the purpose of  selling in the short term or if  
so designated by management and within the requirements of  AASB 139: Recognition and Measurement of  Financial 
Instruments. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Realised and 
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of  these assets are included in the income statement in 
the period in which they arise.

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Held-to-maturity investments
These investments have fi xed maturities, and it is the group’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. Any held-to-
maturity investments held by the group are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Available-for-sale fi nancial assets
Available-for-sale fi nancial assets include any fi nancial assets not included in the above categories. Available-for-sale fi nancial 
assets are refl ected at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to equity.

Financial liabilities
Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments and amortisation.

Fair value
Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to 
determine the fair value for all unlisted securities, including recent arm’s length transactions, reference to similar instruments 
and option pricing models.

Impairment
At each reporting date, the group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a fi nancial instrument has been impaired. 
In the case of  available-for-sale fi nancial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of  the instrument is considered to 
determine whether an impairment loss has arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

 
m.       Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the fi nancial 
assets. All revenue is stated net of  the amount of  goods and services tax (GST).

n.        Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of  the amount of  GST, except where the amount of  GST incurred 
is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Offi ce. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of  the cost of  
acquisition of  the asset or as part of  an item of  the expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown 
inclusive of  GST.

o.        Going Concern

The fi nancial statements have been prepared on the basis that the consolidated entity is a going concern, which contemplates 
the continuity of  normal business activity, realisation of  assets and the settlement of  liabilities in the normal course of  
business.  As at 30 June 2009, the consolidated entity had suffi cient cash reserves to continue its current exploration 
programmes and other working capital requirements.  Should additional funding be required the consolidated entity may 
attempt future equity capital raising initiatives, however, it should be noted that while this source of  funding has been used 
regularly in the past, any future capital raising would be dependent on fi nancial market conditions at the time that any 
additional equity funds are being sought..
 

p.        Interest-bearing Liabilities

Mortgage loans are recognised in the fi nancial statements on the basis of  the nominal amounts outstanding at balance date 
plus accrued interest.

q.        Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

r.         Equity Settled Compensation

The group operates a share-based compensation and incentive plan which includes a share option arrangement applicable to the 
remuneration policy for directors. The bonus element over the exercise price of  the employee services rendered in exchange for 
the grant of  shares and options is recognised as an expense in the income statement. The total amount to be expensed over the 
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of  the options granted using the Binomial method.

s.        New and Revised Accounting Standards and Interpretations

All new and revised Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board 
(AASB) that are relevant to Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL and its subsidiary’s operations and effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on 1 July 2008 have been adopted by the consolidated entity.

Consideration has been given to the following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations, identifi ed as those 
which may impact the entity in the period of  initial application. They are available for early adoption at 30 June 2009, but 
have not been applied in preparing this fi nancial report:

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Standard or Interpretation Summary
Applicable for
reporting periods

AASB 101 - Presentation of
Financial Statements (Revised).

Changes how an entity presents changes in equity and 
also changes presentation and terminology of  the 
primary fi nancial statements.

Beginning 1 January 2009

AASB 123 - Borrowing Costs
(Revised).

Removes the option to expense borrowing costs. 
Entities are now required to capitalise borrowing
costs directly attributable to qualifying asset as part of  
the cost of  that asset.

Beginning 1 January 2009

AASB 3 - Business
Combinations (Revised).

Changes the application of  acquisition accounting for 
business combinations and the accounting for non-
controlling (minority) interests.

Beginning 1 July 2009

AASB 127 - Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements
(Amended).

Changes the accounting for investment in subsidiaries. 
Including the re-measurement to fair value of  
any previous/retained investment when control is 
obtained/lost, with any resulting gain or loss being 
recognised in profi t or loss.

Beginning 1 July 2009

AASB 8 - Operating Segments
Requires an entity to report fi nancial and descriptive 
information about its reportable segments.

Beginning 1 January 2009

AASB 2008-1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standard - 
Share based Payments: Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations.

Changes the measurement of  share-based payments 
that contain non-vesting conditions

Beginning 1 January 2009

AASB 2008-5 - Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from the Annual 
Improvements Project.

The annual improvements
project provides a vehicle for making non-urgent but 
necessary amendments to IFRSs.

Beginning 1 January 2009

AASB 2008-6 – Further 
Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from 
the Annual Improvements
Project.

Includes requirements relating to a sale plan involving 
the loss of  control of  a subsidiary.

Beginning 1 July 2009

AASB 2008-7 - Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards 
- Cost of  an Investment in a 
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled 
Entity or Associate.

Allows fi rst-time adopters, in their separate fi nancial 
statements, to use a deemed cost option for 
determining the cost of  an investment.

Beginning 1 January 2009

AASB 2009-4 - Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from the Annual 
Improvements Project

The amendments to some Standards result in 
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or 
measurement purposes.

Beginning 1 July 2009

AASB 2009-5 – Further 
amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from 
the  Annual Improvements
Project.

The amendments to some Standards result in 
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or 
measurement purposes.

Beginning 1 January 2010

The Directors note that the impact of  the initial application of  the above standards are not yet known or is not reasonably estimable.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 2 Revenue

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009
$

2008
$

2009
$

2008
$

Operating activities

Interest received 122,654 135,928 122,654 135,928

122,654 135,928 122,654 135,928

Total Revenue 122,654 135,928 122,654 135,928
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Note 3 Results for the Financial Year

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009
$

2008
$

2009
$

2008
$

The results for the financial year have been arrived 
at after charging the following:

Expenses

Bad and doubtful debts

   -   third parties - 559 - 559

Rental expense 27,541 19,331 27,541 19,331

Superannuation contribution expense 3,980 12,594 3,980 12,594

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009



Note 4 Income Tax Expense
Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $
a. The prima facie tax on loss before tax is reconciled to the 

income tax as follows:
Prima facie tax on loss before tax at 30% (2008:30%)

(86,969) (136,325) (86,969) (136,325)

Add:

Tax effect of:

— non-allowable items 27,561 62,563 27,561 62,563

— net of current year tax losses not recognised and deductible 
items (exploration expenditure and others)

88,707 108,096 88,707 108,096

29,299 34,334 29,299 34,334

Less:

Tax effect of:

— capitalised share placement costs 29,299 34,334 29,299 34,334

Income tax expense attributable to loss before income tax - -  -   -  

Deferred tax liability in relation to exploration costs 1,233,852 1,022,882 1,233,852 1,022,882

Less tax losses recognised 1,233,852 1,022,882 1,233,852 1,022,882

- - - -

The deferred tax asset arising from tax losses has not been 
recognised as an asset because recovery is not probable:

Tax losses carried forward 3,089,368 2,773,646 3,089,368 2,773,646

Balance of franking account at year end - - -
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Potential deferred tax assets attributable to tax losses carried forward have not been brought to account because Directors 
do not believe it is appropriate to regard realisation of the deferred tax assets as probable.  

Future benefits attributable to temporary differences have not been brought to account as the Directors do not believe it is 
appropriate to regard the realisation of such benefits as probable.  These benefits will  only be obtained if:

(a)    the Company derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit  
        from the deduction for the loss to be realised;

(b)    the Company continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by law; and

(c)    No changes in tax legislation adversely affect the company in realising the benefit from the deductions for 
        the loss.

Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL and its wholly owned entity have not opted to enter the tax consolidation regime as at 30 June 2009.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 5 Key Management Personnel Remuneration

a.           Names and positions held of Parent Entity Directors and Executives in offi ce at any time during the 
              fi nancial  year are:

Parent Entity Directors

John Kaminsky Executive Chairman and Director

Graham Billinghurst Non-Executive Director and Secretary

Ramona Enconniere Non-Executive Director

Andrew Knox Non-Executive Director

Executives 

There were no other executives of  the consolidated entity.

b.         Parent Entity Directors' Remuneration

2009
Short-term

Post 
Employment

Superannuation 
 Contribution 

$

Share based 
Payment
Shares  & 
Options 

$

Total

$
Salary & Fees 

 $
Cash Bonus 

$

Andrew Knox - - - 22,500 22,500

Graham Billinghurst - - - 22,500 22,500
Ramona Enconniere - - - 22,500 22,500
John Kaminsky 126,055 - 45,945 15,974 187,974

126,055 - 45,945 83,474 255,474

2008
Short-term Post 

Employment
Superannuation 
 Contribution 

$

Share based 
Payment
Shares  & 
Options 

$

Total

$
Salary & Fees 

 $
Cash Bonus

$

Andrew Knox - - - 36,692 36,692

Graham Billinghurst - - -
36,692 36,692

Ramona Enconniere - - - 36,692 36,692
John Kaminsky 134,000 - - 80,615 214,615

134,000 - - 190,691 324,691

Fair values of  options granted as part of  remuneration are estimates only.  The estimates are based on the degree of  probability 
of  any future performance hurdles being met, combined with the use of  the Binomial Model.  This model takes account of  
factors such as the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of  the underlying share price and the timing to maturity 
of  the option.
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Note 5          Key Management Personnel Remuneration (Cont’d)

c. Remuneration Options 
  
No options were granted to the directors during the year.

During the year Mr J Kaminsky exercised the following options issued to him as part of his remuneration and long term 
incentive program:

•      750,000 options vesting on 31 May 2008 and exercised on 11 July 2008 for nil consideration. 
•      750,000 options vesting on 30 November 2008 and exercised on 10 December 2008 for nil consideration.

No other options were exercised by any Director during the period to 30 June 2009.

Refer note 17a on options amortisation expense incurred during the year.
 
d. Options Holdings

 Number of Options held by Directors & Executives

2009

Balance
01/07/08

Granted as 
Remuneration

Options 
Exercised

Net 
Change 
Other *

Balance
30/06/09

Total 
Vested

30/06/09

Total 
Exercisable 

30/06/09

Total 
Unexercise-

able 
30/06/09

Directors

R Enconniere 2,500,000 - - (1,000,000) 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 -

A Knox 2,500,000 - - (1,000,000) 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 -

G Billinghurst 3,500,000 - - (2,000,000) 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 -

J Kaminsky 4,500,000 - (1,500,000) (1,000,000) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 -

Total 13,000,000 - (1,500,000) (5,000,000) 6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000 -

* options expired in the period on 30/09/2008

Number of  Options held by Directors & Executives

2008

Balance
01/07/07

Granted as 
Remuneration

Options 
Exercised

Net Change 
Other *

Balance
30/06/08

Total 
Vested

30/06/08

Total 
Exercisable 

30/06/08

Total 
Unexercise-

able 
30/06/08

Directors

R Enconniere 2,000,000 1,500,000 - (1,000,000) 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 -

A Knox 2,000,000 1,500,000 - (1,000,000) 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 -

G Billinghurst 2,000,000 1,500,000 - - 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000 -

J Kaminsky 5,500,000 3,500,000 (3,000,000) (1,500,000) 4,500,000 3,750,000 3,750,000 750,000

Total 11,500,000 8,000,000 (3,000,000) (3,500,000) 13,000,000 12,250,000 12,250,000 750,000

* options expired in the period on 30/09/2007

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 5 Key Management Personnel Remuneration (Cont’d)

e. Shareholdings

Number of  Shares held by Key Management Personnel

2009

Balance
1/7/08

Received as 
Remuneration

Options
Exercised

Net 
Change
Other*

Balance
30/6/09

Parent Entity Directors

G Billinghurst 9,879,166 1,500,000 - - 11,379,166

J Kaminsky 18,779,332 - 1,500,000 - 20,279,332

A Knox 4,166,666 1,500,000 - - 5,666,666

R Enconniere 4,793,333 1,500,000 - - 6,293,333

Total 37,618,497 4,500,000 1,500,000 - 43,618,497

* Net change other refers to shares purchased or sold during the fi nancial year.

Number of  Shares held by Key Management Personnel

2008
Balance
1/7/07

Received as 
Remuneration

Options
Exercised

Net 
Change
Other*

Balance
30/6/08

Parent Entity Directors

G Billinghurst 7,383,332 650,000 - 1,845,834 9,879,166

J Kaminsky 14,779,332 - 3,000,000 1,000,000 18,779,332

A Knox 3,516,666 650,000 - - 4,166,666

R Enconniere 3,516,666 650,000 - 626,667 4,793,333

Total 29,195,996 1,950,000 3,000,000 3,472,501 37,618,497

* Net change other refers to shares purchased or sold during the fi nancial year.
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Remuneration Practices

The Company’s policy for determining the nature and amount of emoluments of Board members and senior executives 
is as follows:

The remuneration structure for executive offi cers, including executive directors, is based on a number of factors, including 
length of service, particular experience of the individual concerned, the complexity of the tasks undertaken, the market 
rate for such skills and work requirements and overall performance of the company. A Remuneration Committee exists 
within the Company to make assessments, review benchmarks and set any appropriate goals.

The engagement conditions of the Executive Chairman, Mr J Kaminsky, are formalised in an agreement which took effect 
1 December 2008 and expires on 30 November 2009.

The consulting agreement stipulates a one month resignation period.  The Company may terminate the agreement without 
cause by providing 3 months written notice.  Upon termination of the agreement, the individual is entitled to payment of 
accrued and outstanding remuneration entitlements to which the individual is or would have become entitled to during 
the full contract period of employment. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 6 Auditor’s Remuneration

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $

Remuneration of  the auditor of  the parent entity for:
— auditing or reviewing the fi nancial report 23,700 24,000 23,700 24,000
— other services - - - -

23,700 24,000 23,700 24,000

Note 7 Earnings per Share
      Consolidated Entity

2009 2008
$ $

a. Reconciliation of  Earnings to Net Profi t or Loss
Loss used in the calculation of  basic EPS (289,895) (454,416)

Loss used in the calculation of  dilutive EPS (289,895) (454,416)

b. Weighted average number of  ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year used in calculation of  basic EPS

309,606,602 275,162,083

Potential ordinary shares

Weighted average number of  ordinary shares outstanding 
during the year used in calculation of  dilutive EPS

309,606,602 275,162,083

c. Classifi cation of  securities
Current share options are anti-dilutive and securities have 
not been classed as potential ordinary shares and are not 
included in the determination of  dilutive EPS:

7,500,000 15,000,000

d. Ordinary shares issued between reporting date and time of  
completion of  the fi nancial report

- 750,000

Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

Cash at bank 1,351,869 2,424,785 1,351,869 2,424,785

1,351,869 2,424,785 1,351,869 2,424,785

Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the fi nancial year as shown in the 
cash fl ow statement is reconciled to items in the balance 
sheet as follows:

Cash 1,351,869 2,424,785 1,351,869 2,424,785

1,351,869 2,424,785 1,351,869 2,424,785

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Note 9 Receivables

Note

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

CURRENT

Security deposits 80 80 80 80

Interest receivable 25,273 - 25,273 -

Sundry debtors 20,126 32,644 19,899 32,417

45,479 32,724 45,252 32,497

NON-CURRENT  

Security deposits 162,969 172,969 162,969 172,969

Amounts receivable from:

— wholly-owned entity - - 464,034 464,034

— allowance for doubtful debts wholly-owned subsidiary - - (464,034) (464,034)

162,969 172,969 162,969   172,969

Note 10 Controlled Entity

Country of Incorporation Percentage Owned (%)
 

 2009 2008

Parent Entity

Rimfire Pacific Mining NL

Subsidiary of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL

Axis Mining NL Australia 100 100

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Note 11 Property, Plant and Equipment

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

LAND

Freehold land:

At cost 216,720 216,720 216,720 216,720

Total Land 216,720 216,720 216,720 216,720

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment

At cost 109,034 72,273 104,533 67,772

Accumulated depreciation (33,871) (23,537) (29,370) (19,036)

75,163 48,736 75,163 48,736

Motor Vehicle

At cost 9,536 9,536 9,536 9,536

Accumulated depreciation (3,164) (1,694) (3,164) (1,694)

6,372 7,842 6,372 7,842

Offi ce Furniture

At cost 46,398 42,488 43,882 39,973

Accumulated depreciation (35,460) (32,459) (32,944) (29,944)

10,938 10,029 10,938 10,029

Leasehold Improvements

At cost 420 420 420 420

Accumulated depreciation (72) (10) (72) (10)

348 410 348 410

Total Plant and Equipment 92,821 67,017 92,821 67,017

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 309,541 283,737 309,541 283,737

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 11 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

a. Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movements in the carrying amounts for each class of  property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of  
the current fi nancial year.

 2009
Freehold 

Land
Motor 

Vehicles
Plant and 

Equipment
Offi ce 

Furniture
Leasehold 

Improvements
Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Consolidated Entity:

Balance at the beginning of  year 216,720 7,842 48,736 10,029 410 283,737

Additions - - 37,325 4,432 - 41,757

Disposals - - - - - -

Depreciation expense - (1,470) (10,898) (3,523) (62) (15,953)

Carrying amount at the end of  year 216,720 6,372 75,163 10,938 348 309,541

Parent Entity:

Balance at the beginning of  year 216,720 7,842 48,736 10,029 410 283,737

Additions - - 37,325 4,432 - 41,757

Disposals - - - - - -

Depreciation expense - (1,470) (10,898) (3,523) (62) (15,953)

Carrying amount at the end of  year 216,720 6,372 75,163 10,938 348 309,541

 2008
Freehold 

Land
Motor 

Vehicles
Plant and 

Equipment
Offi ce 

Furniture
Leasehold 

Improvements
Total

$ $ $ $ $ $

Consolidated Entity:

Balance at the beginning of  year 216,720 4,792 38,415 14,664 - 274,591

Additions - 4,536 17,099 2,000 420 24,055

Disposals - - (882) (2,157) - (3,039)

Depreciation expense - (1,486) (5,896) (4,478) (10) (11,870)

Carrying amount at the end of  year 216,720 7,842 48,736 10,029 410 283,737

Parent Entity:

Balance at the beginning of  year 216,720 4,792 38,415 14,664 - 274,591

Additions - 4,536 17,099 2,000 420 24,055

Disposals - - (882) (2,157) - (3,039)

Depreciation expense - (1,486) (5,896) (4,478) (10) (11,870)

Carrying amount at the end of  year 216,720 7,842 48,736 10,029 410 283,737

Note 12 Other Assets

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

CURRENT

Prepayments 5,000 8,333 5,000 8,333

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Note 13 Exploration & Evaluation Costs Carried Forward

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

NON-CURRENT

Exploration Expenditure

Costs carried forward in respect of  areas of  interest in:

–  exploration and evaluation phases 4,112,839 3,409,608 4,112,839 3,409,608

Total Exploration Expenditure 4,112,839 3,409,608 4,112,839 3,409,608

Ultimate recoupment of  these costs is dependant on successful development and commercial exploration or alternatively sale of  
the respective areas of  interest.

Note 14 Payables

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

CURRENT

Unsecured liabilities

Trade creditors 75,594 101,314 75,594 101,314

Sundry creditors and accrued expenses 52,466 59,656 50,966 58,156

128,060 160,970 126,560 159,470

Note 15 Interest Bearing Liabilities

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

CURRENT

Unsecured liabilities

Rental Bond Received 833 833 833 833

833 833 833 833

Secured liabilities

Mortgage loans - 107,000 - 107,000

- 107,000 - 107,000

833 107,833 833 107,833

a. The carrying amounts of  non-current assets 
pledged as security are:  

First mortgage

Freehold land - 216,720 - 216,720

Total assets pledged as security - 216,720 - 216,720

b     The loan was repaid on 15 December 2008 in accordance 
       with the terms of  the mortgage contract.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Note 17 Contributed Equity

Notes

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

311,976,107 (2008: 305,976,107) fully paid ordinary shares 17a 14,681,951 14,598,477 14,681,951 14,598,477

14,681,951 14,598,477 14,681,951 14,598,477

a. Ordinary shares
 

At the beginning of the reporting period 14,598,477 12,102,530 14,598,477 12,102,530

Shares issued during the year

— 750,000 on 11 July 2008 at nil 
consideration (i)

- - - -

— 4,500,000 on 10 December 2008 at nil 
consideration(ii)

67,500 - 67,500 -

— 750,000 on 10 December 2008 at nil 
consideration (i)

- - - -

— Shares options expense during the year 15,974 95,986 15,974 95,986

— Shares issued in the previous year - 2,638,719 - 2,638,719

Transaction costs relating to share issues - (238,758) - (238,758)

83,474 2,495,947 83,474 2,495,947

At reporting date 14,681,951 14,598,477 14,681,951 14,598,477

The Company does not have limited authorised capital and issued shares have no par value.

(i)  Issued to Executive Chairman due to the exercise of options 
(ii) Issued to Non Executive Directors as remuneration, approved at AGM and measured based upon market value of  
      share price.

Note 16 Provisions

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

CURRENT

Employee Benefi ts 1,872 - 1,872 -

1,872 - 1,872 -

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 17           Contributed Equity (Cont’d)

Note

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

No. No. No. No.

At the beginning of  reporting period 305,976,107 240,520,886 305,976,107 240,520,886
Shares issued during year

— 11 July 2008 750,000 - 750,000
— 10 December 2008 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
— 10 December 2008 750,000 - 750,000
— Issued in the previous year - 65,455,221 - 65,455,221

At reporting date 311,976,107 305,976,107 311,976,107 305,976,107

On 11 July 2008 the Company issued 750,000 ordinary shares at nil cents per share to the Executive Chairman through an 
exercise of  750,000 call options issued on 14 December 2007.

On 10 December 2008 the Company issued 4,500,000 at nil cents per share to the Directors as part of  their remuneration and 
longer term incentive.

On 10 December 2008 the Company issued 750,000 ordinary shares at nil cents per share to the Executive Chairman through 
an exercise of  750,000 call options issued on 14 December 2007.

b.        Options 
 

For information relating to share options issued to key management personnel during the fi nancial year, refer to Note 
18 Share-based Payments.

c.         Capital Management 

Management controls the capital of  the consolidated entity in order to ensure that the Company remains a going concern 
as a primary objective and is able to deliver suitable exploration, as the circumstances allow.  This is done, to the best of  
management’s ability in the prevailing business and economic circumstances.  The consolidated entity’s debt and capital 
includes ordinary share capital, listed options and fi nancial liabilities.

The Board may in the future adjust the capital structure to take advantage of  favourable costs of  capital and issue further 
shares in the market.  The Board has no current plans to adjust the capital structure.  There are no plans to distribute 
dividends in the next fi nancial year.

The consolidated entity is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Note 18 Share Based Payments

The following share-based payment arrangements existed at 30 June 2009:

On 14 December 2007, 6,500,000 share options were granted to the Directors of  the Company and 1,000,000 were granted to the 
Exploration Manager, Mr C Plumridge to take up ordinary shares at an exercise price of  12 cents each. The options were available 
for exercise from 14 December 2007 to 30 September 2010. (Reference OP01)

All options granted to Directors and the Exploration Manager are for ordinary shares in Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL, which confer 
a right of  one ordinary share for every option held.

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

Number of  
Options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price

Number 
of  

Options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price
Number of  

Options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price
Number 

of  Options

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price

$ $ $ $

Outstanding at 
the beginning of  
the year 15,000,000 0.11 13,500,000 0.10 15,000,000 0.11 13,500,000 0.10

Granted - 9,000,000 0.10 - 9,000,000 0.10

Forfeited - - - - - -

Exercised (1,500,000) - (3,000,000) - (1,500,000) - (3,000,000) -

Expired (6,000,000) 0.12 (4,500,000) 0.12 (6,000,000) 0.12 (4,500,000) 0.12

Outstanding at 
year-end 7,500,000 0.12 15,000,000 0.11 7,500,000 0.12 15,000,000 0.11

Exercisable at 
year-end 7,500,000 0.12 14,250,000 0.11 7,500,000 0.12 14,250,000 0.11

There were 1,500,000 options exercised during the year ended 30 June 2009.  These options had a weighted average share price 
of  $0.015 at exercise date.

The options outstanding at 30 June 2009 had a weighted average exercise price of  $0.12 and a weighted average remaining 
contractual life of  15 months.  Exercise price is $0.12 in respect of  options outstanding at 30 June 2009.

No options were granted during the year ended 30 June 2009.

Included under Directors’ securities benefi ts expense is $83,474 (2008: $190,691), and relates, in full, to equity-settled share-based 
payment transactions.

All of  the assumptions underlying the Binomial method of  valuing options have been applied to arrive at a value of  options 
issued to Directors.  Fair values of  options granted as part of  remuneration are estimates only.  The estimates are based on the 
degree of  probability of  future performance hurdles being met, combined with the use of  the Binomial Model.  This model takes 
account of  factors such as the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of  the underlying share price and the timing 
to maturity of  the option.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 19 Capital and Leasing Commitments

Note

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

a.  Operating Lease Commitments 

Offi ce & Other Premises

Payable

— not later than 1 year 16,164 21,553 16,164 21,553

— later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - 16,164 - 16,164

16,164 37,717 16,164 37,717

The offi ce premises lease is a non-cancellable lease with a two-year term, with rent payable monthly in advance, and commenced 
on 1st April 2008.  The lease agreement has a fi xed yearly payment value of  year (1) $19,593 plus GST and year (2) $20,573 plus 
GST.  An option exists to renew the lease at the end of  the two year term for a further two periods of  two years each period.  The 
lease allows for sub-letting of  all lease areas.  

b.  Capital Expenditure Commitments

The consolidated entity is committed to capital expenditure 
on its various mining tenements and leases as follows:

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

Payable $ $ $ $

— not later than 1 year 500,000 548,000 500,000 548,000

— later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 1,000,000 1,500,000 1,000,000 1,500,000

1,500,000 2,048,000 1,500,000 2,048,000

Note 20 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Directors are not aware of  any matters or circumstances which have arisen during or since the fi nancial year which may 
signifi cantly  affect the operations of  the consolidated entity, the results of  those operations or state of  affairs of  the consolidated 
entity in future years.  

Note 21 Segment Reporting

Business and Geographical Segments

The consolidated entity operates predominantly in one business segment, being mineral exploration and prospecting.  The 
consolidated entity operates predominantly in one geographical segment, being Australia.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 22 Related Party Transactions

     Consolidated Entity         Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and 
conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless 
otherwise stated.

Transactions with related parties:

(i) Director-related Entities

Strategic International Ventures Pty Ltd, a company associated 
with J Kaminsky, was paid $16,358 in respect of  administrative 
services provided for the parent entity during the year.

16,358 27,225 16,358 27,225

(ii) Entities in the wholly owned group

Axis Mining NL

At 30 June 2009, Axis Mining NL has amounts owing to the parent 
entity totalling $464,034 (2008: $464,034) interest free, payable at 
call.  The loan has been fully provided for.

-   -  - -

Note 23 Post Balance Date Events

There are no matters or circumstances which have arisen since the end of  the fi nancial year which signifi cantly affected or 
may signifi cantly affect the operations of  the consolidated entity, the results of  those operations, or the state of  affairs of  the 
consolidated entity in future fi nancial years.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 24 Cash Flow Information

Consolidated Entity Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008

$ $ $ $

a. Reconciliation of  Cash Flow from Operations with Loss after 
Income Tax

Loss after income tax (289,895) (454,416) (289,895) (454,416)

Non-cash fl ows in loss 

Depreciation and amortisation 15,953 11,870 15,953 11,870

Write-off  of  capitalised expenditure 8,397 15,058 8,397 15,058

Loss / (Gain) on disposal of  property, plant and equipment - 3,038 - 3,038

Share based payments expensed 83,474 190,691 83,474 190,691

Allowance for doubtful debts - 559 - 559

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of  the effects of  purchase and 
disposal of  subsidiaries

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments 3,333 (292) 3,333 (292)

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables (20,446) (5,167) (20,446) (5,167)

Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors and accruals (21,506) (77,211) (21,506) (77,211)

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 1,872 - 1,872 -

Cash fl ows from operations (218,818) (315,870) (218,818) (315,870)

b. Cash not available for use
There was no cash as at the end of  the year which was unavailable for 
use.  

c. Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities

There were no non-cash fi nancing and investing activities carried out 
during the year.

d. Credit Standby Facilities
The group has no overdraft facility.

e. Used / Unused Facilities
Loan Facilities
- Used - 107,000 - 107,000

- Unused - - - -

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 25   Financial Risk Management

a.        Financial Risk Management Policies

The group’s fi nancial instruments consist mainly of  deposits with banks, deposits with other non-fi nancial institutions, 
payables, loans to subsidiaries and secured borrowings.

The main purpose of  non-derivative fi nancial instruments is to raise and maintain fi nance for the group’s operations.

The group is not involved in the use of  derivative fi nancial instruments for either hedging or speculative trading purposes. 
Such instruments include forward exchange and currency option contracts and interest rate swap agreements.

       i. Treasury Risk Management

The Board of  directors regularly reviews the fi nancial and economic cycle risks that may affect the Company.  In addition, 
an audit committee consisting of  the executive director and non-executive directors of  the group meet to analyse fi nancial 
risk exposure and to evaluate management strategies in the context of  the most recent economic conditions and forecasts.

The committee’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting its fi nancial goals, whilst 
minimising the potential adverse effects on fi nancial performance.

The audit committee operates under policies approved by the Board of  directors.  Risk management policies are approved and 
reviewed by the Board on a regular basis.  These primarily include the management of  the group’s future cash fl ow requirements.

       ii. Financial Risk Exposure and Management

The main risks the group is exposed to through its fi nancial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that adverse changes in the market rate of  interest applicable to either debts owed by the group 
or interest bearing investments held by the group will materially impact on the group’s fi nancial performance or position.
 
The group’s interest rate risk exposure in relation to debt is managed by fi xing the rate of  exchange with respect to secured 
borrowings.  Risk associated with funds held in deposit with fi nancial institutions is managed by maintaining short term or 
non-fi xed maturity dates with respect to these deposits.

Liquidity Risk
Refers to the risk that the group will have insuffi cient funds available to meet debts as and when they fall due.  The group 
manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash fl ows and ensuring that adequate unutilised borrowing facilities are 
maintained and that opportunities for equity fi nancing are regularly monitored.

Credit Risk
At balance date the maximum exposure to credit risk, (excluding the value of  any collateral or other security), recognised as 
a fi nancial assets is the carrying amount, net of  any provisions for doubtful debts of  those assets, as disclosed in the balance 
sheet and notes to the fi nancial statements.

The group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of  debtors under fi nancial 
instruments entered into by the consolidated entity.

Business Cycle Risks
The Company monitors key market indicators representative of  the current business cycle to ensure that business cycle risks 
are taken into consideration in planning decisions.  In particular, the general economic climate is reviewed and considered 
in the specifi c context of  the resource and exploration industry outlook.  Regular discussion within the Board takes account 
of  the potential impact of  these circumstances and the Company’s ability to maintain its exploration programs at a suitable 
level and the cycle risk impact on any Company fi nancing decisions.

Exploration and Project Risks
The nature of  the core business is high risk exploration activities.  There is always the possibility, despite best endeavours and 
extensive work programs that an economic realisation of  the exploration work undertaken may not occur.  The Board receives 
regular input from various technical professionals in regards to its work programs and weighs the relative performance of  
the exploration activities undertaken by the Company with the stated direction of  attempting to add signifi cant commercial 
value to its portfolio of  projects.  In addition, a risk exists that suitably qualifi ed personnel cannot be retained or secured to 
continue work on the various exploration programs.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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c. Net Fair Values

The carrying amounts of fi nancial assets and liabilities approximate the net fair value unless otherwise stated.
The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of fi nancial assets and liabilities:

Recognised fi nancial instruments

Cash: The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Receivables: The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Term Deposits: The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Trade Creditors: The carrying amount approximates fair value.
Secured Borrowings: The carrying amount approximates fair value

d. Sensitivity Analysis

The group has performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk at balance date.   This 
sensitivity analysis demonstrates the effect on the current year results and equity which could result from a change in 
these risks.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
At 30 June 2009, the effect on profi t after tax and equity as a result of  changes in the interest rate, with all other 
variables remaining constant would be as follows:

       Consolidated Entity                       Parent Entity

2009
$

2008
$

2009
$

2008
$

Change in profi t after tax
- Increase in interest rate by 2% 39,174 37,090 39,174 37,090
- Decrease in interest rate by 2% (39,174) (37,090) (39,174) (37,090)

Change in equity
- Increase in interest rate by 2% 39,174 37,090 39,174 37,090
- Increase in interest rate by 2% (39,174) (37,090) (39,174) (37,090)

The above changes are based on the effect of  an interest rate change in relation to:

secured borrowings held for $107,000 presently carrying an interest rate of  10% per annum and funds held • 
on deposit: and
funds held in deposit with fi nancial institutions• 

Note 26              Company Details

The registered offi ce of  the Company is: Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL
“Exchange Tower”
Suite 411, 530 Little Collins Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000

The principal place of  business is: Rimfi re Pacifi c Mining NL
“Exchange Tower”
Suite 411, 530 Little Collins Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000

Note 25   Financial Risk Management (Cont’d) 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2009
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Directors’ Declaration

The Directors of  the Company declare that:

1.               The fi nancial statements and notes, as set out on pages 32 to 59 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001 and:

a.   comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and,

b.   give a true and fair view of  the fi nancial position as at 30 June 2009 and of  the performance for the year  
      ended on that date of  the Company and consolidated entity.

2.     In the Directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 
debts as and when they become due and payable.

3.     The Executive Chairman has given the declarations in his capacity as chief  representative of  executive 
management of  the company to the Directors required by Section 295A.  

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of  the Board of  Directors.

  Director                             John Kaminsky     
  
  Dated this                 4th          day of         September         2009 
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Independant Auditor’s Report

 

Tel: 61 3 9603 1700  |  Fax: 61 3 9602 3870  |  www.pkf.com.au 

PKF  |  ABN 83 236 985 726 

Level 14, 140 William Street  |  Melbourne  |  Victoria 3000  |  Australia 

GPO Box 5099  |  Melbourne  |  Victoria 3001  

The PKF East Coast Practice is a member of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent member firms. The PKF East Coast Practice is also a member 
of the PKF Australia Limited national network of legally independent firms each trading as PKF. PKF East Coast Practice has offices in NSW, Victoria and Brisbane. PKF 
East Coast Practice does not accept responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF RIMFIRE PACIFIC MINING NL 
 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL (“the company”) 
which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009, and the income statement, statement of 
changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration for both the company 
and the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entity it controlled at the year’s end or 
from time to time during the financial year. 
 
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report 
 
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting 
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001.  This responsibility includes establishing and 
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report 
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 
“Presentation of Financial Statements”, that compliance with Australian Equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements 
and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  These Auditing Standards require that we 
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Independence 
 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations 
Act 2001. 
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Independant Auditor’s Report

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D) 
TO THE MEMBERS OF RIMFIRE PACIFIC MINING NL 
 
 
 
Auditor’s Opinion 
 
In our opinion:  
 
(a) the financial report of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL is in accordance with the Corporations Act 

2001, including 
 
(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the company and the consolidated 

entity as at 30 June 2009 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and 
 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting 
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and 

 
(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed 

in Note 1.  
 
Report on the Remuneration Report 
 
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 6 to 8 of the directors’ report for the year 
ended 30 June 2009.  The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 
2001.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit 
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 
 
Auditor’s Opinion 
 
In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Rimfire Pacific Mining NL for the year ended 30 June 2009, 
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Acts 2001. 
 
 
 
 
 
PKF J A Mooney 
 Partner 
 
4 September 2009 
Melbourne 
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Additional Information
for Publicly Listed Companies

1.              The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 8 September 2009.

(a)   Distribution of  Shareholders by Class

(b)   The number of  holders with shareholdings in less than marketable parcels was 803 as at 8      
        September 2009.

(c)   The number of  holders of  each class of  equity security as at 8 September 2009 was:

 

(d)   There was one substantial shareholder listed in the holding company’s register as at 8 September 2009.

Mr John Kaminsky had a benefi cial interest in 20,279,332 ordinary fully paid shares, representing 6.50% of  the 
outstanding shares in the Company

(e)   Voting Rights

Every Member is entitled to be present at a meeting and may vote.

On a show of  hands, every Member has one vote.

On a poll every Member has:
- one vote for each fully paid share;  and
- voting rights pro rata to the amount paid up on each partly paid share held by the Member.

 

 

Category 
(size of holding)

Ordinary Shares Unlisted Options

1 - 1,000 49,104   -

1,001 - 5,000 551,812 -

5,001 – 10,000 1,622,498 -

10,001 – 100,000 34,983,206 -

100,001 & over 274,769,487 7,500,000

311,976,107 7,500,000

Class of  Security Number

Ordinary fully paid shares 1716
Unlisted options 5
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(f)      20 Largest Shareholders - Ordinary Capital as at 8 September 2009.

   

2.              The name of the company secretary is Mr Graham Billinghurst.

3.              The address and telephone number of  the registered offi ce and principal administrative offi ce is:

Suite 411, 530 Little Collins Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

Telephone: (03) 9620 5866
Facsimile: (03) 9620 5822
Website:   www.rimfi re.com.au 

4.              The register of securities is held at the following address:

Computershare Registry Services
Level 19, 
307 Queen Street
Brisbane QLD 4001
 
Telephone: 1 300 552 270
Facsimile: (07) 3237 2152

Name

Number of  
Ordinary 

Fully 
Paid Shares 

Held

% Held of  
Issued 

Ordinary 
Capital

1 Mr John Kaminsky 15,766,666 5.05%

2 Warcoll Holdings Pty Ltd 9,879,166 3.17%
3 Mr Kerry Peter Jelbart 7,606,439 2.44%
4 Ralston Corp. Pty Ltd Ralston Super Fund A/C 7,602,887 2.44%

5 UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees P/L 7,220,000 2.31%

6 Esperance Investments Pty Ltd 6,339,300 2.03%
7 Bond Street Custodians Pty Ltd 6,250,000 2.00%
8 Mr Alexander Suvoltos 5,000,000 1.60%
9 Jillina Kaminsky 4,512,666 1.45%
10 Assesslaw Pty Ltd – Gibson Super Fund 4,336,878 1.39%
11 Mr Andrew Knox 4,166,666 1.34%
12 Donald Malcolm Leembruggen 3,995,381 1.28%
13 Mr William Theodore Durnell 3,773,958 1.21%
14 Mrs Ma Ting Fong 3,394,034 1.09%
15 Mr Malcolm Clark Anderson 3,318,100 1.06%

16 Mr Laurie John Newman 2,932,852 0.94%

17 Cooee Investments Pty Ltd 2,901,083 0.93%
18 Ramona Enconniere 2,710,000 0.87%

19 Mr Guy Alexander Lumsden 2,678,647 0.86%

20 Dr Stephen Jelbart 2,398,958 0.77%

106,783,681 34.23%

Additional Information
for Publicly Listed Companies
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5.              Stock Exchange Listing

Quotation has been granted for all the ordinary shares of the company on all Member Exchanges of the 
Australian Securities Exchange Limited.

6.              Vendor Securities

There are no restricted securities on issue as at 8 September 2009.

7.              Unquoted Securities

20 Largest Holders of Unlisted Options as at 8 September 2009.

 Name Number of 
Unlisted Options 

Held 
Exp. 30/09/10

Exercise @ $0.12

% Held of total 
Issued Unlisted 

Options

1 Mr Graham Billinghurst 1,500,000 20.00%

2 Mr Andrew Knox 1,500,000 20.00%

3 Ms Ramona Enconniere 1,500,000 20.00%

4 Mr Colin Plumridge 1,000,000 13.33%

5 Mr John Kaminsky 2,000,000 26.67%

750,000 100.00%

Additional Information
for Publicly Listed Companies
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Corporate Directory

John Kaminsky (Chairman)
Graham Billinghurst 
Ramona Enconniere
Andrew Knox

 
Graham Billinghurst

 
Suite 411, 530 Little Collins Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

 
Suite 411, 530 Little Collins Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

 
PKF Chartered Accountants
Level 14, 
140 William Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

 
McNab Lawyers 
Level 5, 111 Collins Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
Level 19, 
307 Queen Street
Brisbane, Queensland 4001

 
Macquarie Bank Limited
300 Queen Street
Brisbane, Queensland   4000

 
Australian Stock Exchange
Home Exchange - Brisbane
ASX Code – RIM

rimfire@rimfire.com.au

http://www.rimfire.com.au

Directors:

Company Secretary:

Registered Office:

Exploration Office:

Auditors:

Lawyers for the Company:

Share Registry:

Bankers:

Stock Exchange Listing:

Email address:

Website address:



www.rimfi re.com.au

Bulk sampling for Platinum Fifield NSW



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Europe ISO Coated FOGRA27)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.16667
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.16667
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /ENU ([Based on 'Press Print Downsampled'] [Based on '[High Quality Print]'] Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 8.503940
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




